	rderal Mediation and Conciliation Service Case umber: 14-60738-8
Bureau of Prisons (FBOP), Federal Correctional Complex (FCC), Butner, North Garolina "Agency/Employer" and The American Federation of Government Employees (AFGE), AFL-CRO, Council of Prison Locals 33, Local 408, and Mr. Anthony Little, President "Union/Grievant"	eue(a): Is the subject grievance berred by a previously filed ULP endlor procedutally flewed and, therefore not arbitrable? If not Did the Agency violate the provisions of Federal lew, regulations, and/or the parties' Master Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between it and Local 406 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overtime hiring procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 3696; and, in so doing, skipped over bergeining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was offered and assigned; thereby, adversely affecting those bargeining unit employees represented by Local 408? If so, what should the remedy be? Date Decision Issued: May 31, 2016

APPEARANCES:

For the Agency/Employer

Mr. Nike Marklewicz Labor Relations Specialist/Agency Representativa U.S. Department of Justice Federal Bureau of Prisons Labor Relations Office – West 230 North First Avenue Suite 201 Phoenix, Arizona 85003

For the Union/Grievant

Ms. Lilliam (Liza) Mendoze Attorney-at-Law and Countrel for the Union 2002 Baitimore Road Suite B-33 Rockville, Maryland 20851

BEFORE: William A. Dealy, Jr., Arbitrator

WITNESSES TESTIFYING:

Called by the Agency/Employer

Mr. Jonathan Hemingway Mr. Richard Kelly Smith

Called by the Union/Orievant

Mr. Morris Dillard Mr. Christopher Robinson

Done

Mr. Anthony Little Mr. Shelli Anderson

Ma Cris Verma

Mr. Eric Young

Arbitration Decision and Award Sections.

I.	Background	2
H.	Procedural Matters	2
111.	Statement of the Issue(s)	4
₩.	Relevant Provisions of the Parties' Collective Bergaining Agreement	8
V.	Summary of the Parties' Position(s)	
	The Agency/Employer as provided in pre-intering submissions, at hearing, and in a post-hearing brief. Relating to theshold issues of arbitrability. Relating to the merits of the grievance. The Union/Grievant as provided in pre-hearing submissions, at hearing, and in post-twaring brief. Relating to threshold issues of arbitrability. Relating to threshold issues of arbitrability. Relating to the merits of the grievance.	6 6 10 13
V I.	Discussion, Analysis, and Findings	18
VII.	Decision and Award	38
Viii.	End Notes	40
		-14

I. Background.

The record shows that on August 12, 2013, Mr. Anthony Little, President of American Federation of Government Employees (AFGE), Local 408, became aware that bargaining unit members represented by his local were being adversely affected by new outside hospital overtime procedures implemented by management at the Federal Correctional Complex (FCC), Butner, North Carelina. Accordingly, on August 13, 2013, Mr. Little made a written request to FCC Butner's Complex Warden, Mr. Craig Apker, in an attempt at informal resolution of the problem,⁴ With no resolution, on September 11, 2013, Mr. Little filed a formal grievance on behat of all bargaining unit members represented by Local 408.² The grievance claimed FCC Butner, through the action of Complex Warden Apker, violated Title 5, USC, 7119; the parties' Master Agreement, Articles alx and eighteen; as well as, the Beck Pay Act, 5 USC 5596 – outlined specifics regarding the alleged violations, beginning on or about August 20, 2013, and continuing since that date – and, requested a list of remedies. By letter dated September 20, 2013, the Agency, through Federal Bureau of Prison's Mid-Atlantic Regional Director, Mr. C. Eichenlaub, denied the grievance³, and, on September 25, 2013, AFGE, Local 408 invoked its right to extination.⁴

H. Procedural Matters.

By letter dated January 5, 2015, the Federal Mediation and Consistation Service (FMCS) informed the undersigned that the parties identified above had selected him, and FMCS was appointing him, to hear and decide an overtime grievance identified as FMCS case number 14-50738-8.⁶

Following a series of email and telephonic communications; by letters dated January 23, 2015, the Arbitrator informed the parties that he accepted their appointment, outlined the basic procedures to be followed, confirmed and explained his per diem rates and charge policies, and offered three periods of time that he was available to hear the matter – April 20-24, June 1-5, and June 15-19, 2015. Through additional email communications with the parties it was egreed that the matter could probably be heard in three-days of hearings to be conducted August 4-6, 2015, at the Butner, Federal Correctional Complex, Old NC 74, Buiner, North Carolina 27509. Accordingly, an administrative conference (AC) with the parties was scheduled to convene at 8:30AM, Tuesday, August 4th with the

FMCS Case #14-50735-5, U.S. Department of Junitics, Federal Surgey of Princes, Federal Connectional Complex, Buther, North Carolina and the APGE, APL-CKD, Council of Prison Locals #33, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Livie continued:

hearing to commence immediately at the conclusion of the administrative conference. The hearing scheduling setter size requested that the parties provide the Arbitrator with a copy of the parties' collective bargaining agreement together with any amendmente and/or memorandums of understanding, as well as, the grievance file. The parties were also provided an opportunity to file pre-hearing briefs, and informed when they should exchange witness lists.

At 8:30AM, Tuesday, August 4th the Arbitrator held an administrative conference with the parties to discuss, among other things, the purpose of the hearing; hearing procedures, including attendence and the hearting of witnesses; the recording of the hearing; and any stipulations reached. As to the parties' collective bargaining agreement (CBA), at the beginning of the edministrative conference the Arbitrator acknowledged receipt of the Union's prehearing submissions, including an electronic copy of an untitled, unsigned, undated forty-eight page document identified as the parties' Master Labor Agreement (MLA) [Hereafter referred to us simply the Master Agreement or MA]. Then, the parties provided a signed/dated hard copy of a document also identified as the Master Agreement or MA]. Then, the parties provided a signed/dated hard copy of a document also identified as the Master Agreement or MA]. Then, the parties provided a signed/dated hard copy of a document also identified as the Master Agreement or MA]. Then, the parties provided a signed/dated hard copy of a document also identified as the Master Agreement or MA]. Then, the parties provided a signed/dated hard copy of a document also identified as the Master Agreement or MA]. Between the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), Federal Bureau of Prisons (FBOP) and the American Federation of Government Employees (AFGE), AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals, executed Fabruary 6, 1998, for the partied March 9, 1998, through March 8, 2001.⁶ A current review of both documents revealed minor differences between the document provided by the Union in its pre-hearing submissions and the hard copy document provided at the administrative conference. Accordingly, the parties stipulated that the hard copy document provided was a frue and official copy of the parties' MA that was in effect during the total period of time associated with the subject grievance; and, that the sgreement had been properly extended since close of the initial period of effect on March 8, 2001, until

Article 32 of the MA addresses arbitration, and provides in part as follows, in:

- Sections a-c, how arbitration is to be invoked and the arbitrator selected;
- Section d, that the arbitrator's fees and all expenses of the arbitration (with exceptions as noted) are to be borne equally by the parties and that the Employer is to determine the location of the hearing;
- Section e, that the hearing will be held during regular day shift hours, the grievant's witnesses and representatives will be on official time, the Union is entitled to the same number of representatives as the Agency, and the Union is entitled to have one observer;
- Section f, how and when witheas lists are to be exchanged;
- Section g, that the arbitrator shall be requested to render a decision as quickly as possible, but in any event no later than thirty calendar days after conclusion of the hearing, unless the parties mutually agree to extend the time limit;
- Section h, that the arbitrator's award shall be binding on the parties and the arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of the agreement or published FBOP policies and regulations; and
- Section i, that a verbatim transcript of the hearing will be made when requested by either party and how the costs are to be handled.

Otherwise, the MA is ellent regarding hearing procedures and the Arbitrator's powers. Accordingly, when asked if the parties were, in any way, restricting the Arbitrator's powers to determine and define the issue or issues presented in the hearing; and, through the evidence presented at hearing, to decide the matter, the Counsels for both parties sold they were not restricting the Arbitrator in any way.⁵ With regard to attendence at the hearing, the parties agreed that witnesses would not be allowed to be in the hearing, except when testifying; and, that each side would be permitted to have one technical assistant attend the hearing.⁹ In accordance with the MA, the parties agreed and erranged for a verbatim transcript of the hearing. After discussing streamlining measures, rules of

evidence, post-heating briefs, and when the parties could expect the written decision and award¹⁰; and detaxtelying, that no other matters needed to be covered, the administrative conference was adjourned at 9:10AM, and the hearing on the matter convened at 9:25AM, Tuesday, August 4, 2015.

At the beginning of the hearing, the Arbitrator asked both parties to introduce themselves and their technical representatives; explained the various exhibit lists being maintained¹⁴, and entered into the record the initial three (3) exhibits identified as Arbitrator/Joint exhibits; explained all previous communications with the parties, including any dealings with the parties during his thirty-plus years Federal service; and, asked the parties if they had any concerns or issues regarding his ability to conduct a fair and impartial hearing on the matter before him – To which both parties answered likey had no objection.¹² Following opening statements the hearing then proceeded in an orderly manner.¹³ A total of eight witnesses testified under onth as administered by the Arbitrator¹⁴.

The Agency's advocate and Counsel, as well as, the Grievant's advocate and Counsel, fully and fairly represented their respective party. While the hearing record was open, and/or subsequently as requested by the Arbitrator, a total of ten (10) Arbitrator/Joint exhibits, comprising over 1,004 pages of documentation were affered and accepted into the record; six (6) Agency/Employer exhibits comprising over 730 pages of documentation affered and accepted; and thirty-eight (38) Union/Grievant exhibits comprising over 1,486 pages of documentation affered and accepted; and thirty-eight (38) Union/Grievant exhibits comprising over 1,486 pages of documentation affered and accepted; and thirty-eight (38) Union/Grievant exhibits comprising over 1,486 pages of documentation affered and accepted. As discussed during the administrative conference, at the close of testimony the Arbitrator requested post-hearing briefs from both sides. Both Counsels reserved their closing for their post-hearing brief. In closing both parties were asked if they felt they had the opportunity to present their case as they wented to present it and had presented all the evidence they wented to present; and both Counsels answered in the affirmative.¹⁶ Following receipt of the post-hearing briefs and rebutal briefs, the hearing record was closed at 8:00AM, Thursday, April 7, 2018.

Accordingly, the undersigned Arbitrator aduxowledges the position of the parties; that the matter is properly before him in accordance with the appropriate provisions of law, regulations, and the parties' MA; that he is notely responsible to hear and determine the iterates; and to render a written decision and evend, in accordance with the parties' MA, FMCS policies, and State and Federal law.

To this end, the undersigned has thoroughly reviewed the evidence presented in pre-hearing submissions, through testimony³⁶ and exhibits offered/accepted at hearing; and, through post-hearing briefs, rebuttels, and clarifying information submitted by the parties. The Arbitrator does not feel compelled to address all of the sumerous arguments and issues raised by the solvocates. However, please do not interpret this to mean that the Arbitrator has not read and reread the parties' briefs, rebuttels, and citations included in the some 3,142 pages of documentation submitted as evidence; as well as, thoroughly read and studied some 682 pages of isstimony prevented in four days of hearings; and carefully considered all arguments by the advocates. The Arbitrator elects to address only those elements that have a significant impact on his decision-making process. The Arbitrator, as a general rule, will not comment on matters that he believes are irrelevant, superfluous, redundant, or rendered most by his decision.

IK. Statement of the Issue(s).

Article 32, Section a, of the parties' MA provides, in part;

"In order to invoke erbitration, the party seeking to have an issue submitted to erbitration must notify the other party in writing of this intent prior to expiration of any applicable time limit. The notification must include a statement of the issues involved, the alleged violations, and the requested remody. If the parties fail to earle on a joint submission of the issue's) for arbitration, each party shall extend to expirate submission and the arbitration, shall determine the issue or insure to be heard. However, the issues, the slieged violations, and the remody requested in the written grievence may be modified only by mutual agreement." [Emphasis added]

A review of the subject grievance clearly shows that it was filed by Mr. Little, in his capacity as President of AFGE, Local 408, on behalf of all bargaining unit employees that his Local represents. Furthermore, the grievance plainty provides that the matter grieved involved acts or actions of the Complex Werden at the Butner FCC relating to a FMCS Case \$14-50735-8, U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Princes, Federal Correctional Complex, Butter, North Caroline and the AFGE, AFL-CKG, Council of Prince, Lacade #33, Local 400 and Mr. Anthony Little continued:

change in "Overtime Hiring Procedures" being used to grant and assign overtime – Which, in the view of the Local, violated Federal law and the parties' Master Agreement; and, resulted in bargaining unit employees, represented by Local 408, being skipped over on overtime rosters and not essigned/granted overtime; therefore, being treated unfairly, inequitable, and adversely affected.¹⁷

In its pre-hearing brief the Union simply stated that the allegations in the grievance include unequitable distribution of overtime, violation of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) executed in February 2013, and violation of Article 18, Section p, of the Master Agreement.¹⁹ Also, during the administrative conference with the parties prior to the hearing, the Arbitrator pointed out that review of pre-hearing submissions indicated that the purpose of the scheduled hearing was to determine if the employer/agency violated the provisions of the applicable CBA, it's supplements and memorandums of understanding when it failed to honor and comply with a February 2013 Federal Labor Relations Authority approved settlement agreement and memorandum of understanding between the Council of Prison Locals, Local 408, and the Butner Federal Correctional Complex regarding overtime procedures; and both parties concurred with that determination.¹⁹ Additionally, neither party offered in pre-hearing submissions or at the administrative conference a stipulated statement of the issue or issues to be addivesed at the hearing.

However, at the administrative conference the Agency did raise threshold issues regarding the arbitrability of the grievance; maintaining that the grievance was practuded by a previously filed unfair labor practice (ULP), was untimely filed, and filed with the wrong Agency official.³⁰

In their post-hearing briefs, both parties offered their statement of the issues to be heard and decided. The Agency provided that the issues are:

- (1) Did the Union's previously filed unfair labor practice (ULP)²¹ bar the instant grievance?
- (2) Was the Union's grievance untimely filed?
- (3) Was the Linion's grievance filed with the wrong office?

(4) Did management violate the Master Agreement. Article 18, Section p1? And, if so, what should be the remedy?

The Union provided that the issues are:

- (1) Whether the grievance was untimaly fited?
- (2) Whether the filling of the unfair labor practice (ULP) bers Local 408 to pursue the captioned grievance?
- (3) Whether the grievance was erroneously filed with the Regional Director?
- (4) Whether the Agency violated Article 18 (p) of the MA when it implemented the new MOU between the Agency and Locals 405 and 3698 silowing the other Locals to receive overtime without giving first consideration to employees of Local 408?
- (5) Whether the Agency violated the MA when it granted overtime to non-bargaining unit GS-12 employees?
- (8) Whether the Agency owes back pay to bargaining unit employees represented by Local 406 for skipping over them when assigning overtime as a result of the MOU entered with Locals 405 and 3696? And,

(7) Whether the Agency should be ordered to pay attornay's fees under the Back Pay Act? Since the parties failed to submit a joint stipulated statement of the issue(s) to be heard and decided, in accordance with the provisions of Article 32, Section a of the parties' agreement, the Arbitrator describes the issue(s) to be heard and decided as follows: is the subject grievance barred by a previously filed ULP and/or propedurally flavred and, therefore, not arbitrable? If not...

Did the Agancy violate the provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties' Master Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorendum of understanding (MOU) between it and Local 408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overlime hiring procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 3696; and, in so doing, aligned over bergaining unit employees represented by Local 406 when overtime was offered and assigned; thereby, adversely affecting bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408? If so, what should the remedy be?

IV. Relevent Provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties' Master Agreement.

The Union maintaine that the pertinent provisions of Federal Law are Title 5 USC 7114 and 7116(d); and 5 USC 5696 – And, the Preamble; as well as, Article 1, Sections a and b; Article 2, Section a; Article 4, Sections a and b; Article 7, Sections a, b, c, d and k; Article 9, Section a 4; Article 18, Section p 1 and 2; and, Article 31, Section d and f 1, 2, and 3 as being the relevant provisions of the Master Agreement. The Agency's brief did not one any specific provisions of Federal law and regulations, but did specify that the following provisions of the Master Agreement were relevant – Article 1, Section a and c; Article 3, Section a; Article 5, Section a; Article 9; Article 16, Section p 1; Article 31, Section d, e, and f 1; and Article 32, Section a and h.

The Arbitrator views all applicable Federal law and regulations relevant, especially 5 USC 71 and flowing government-wide regulations. While both parties have pointed the Arbitrator to several specific provisions of the MA that each view as particularly relevant, it is interesting they agree on only four specific provisions – Article 1-Recognition, Section 2; Article 9-Negotiations at the Local Level, Section a; Article 18-Hours of Work, Section p; and Article 31-Greivance Procedures, Sections d and 14.

The Arbitrator, however, sees the parties' Master Agreement in total – that is all provisions within the four-comens of the base document; as well as, any supplemental agreements and memorandume of understanding, as relevant. With the following parts requiring particular attantion – The Preamble; Article 1-Recognition; Article 2-Joint Labor Management Relations; Article 3-Governing Regulationa; Article 4-Relationship of the Agreement to Bureau Policies, Regulations and Practisee; Article 5-Rights of the Employer, Article 7-Rights of the Union; Article 9-Negotiations at the Local Level; Article 18-Hours of Work; Article 31-Grievance Procedure; Article 32-Arbitration; Article 42-Effective Date and Duration of this Agreement; and Appendix A. Nevertheless, while some Arbitrators make a practice of documenting the specifics of each agreement provision they find relevant in the body of their decision/invard; the undersigned will detail only those specific provisions and wording he feels are needed to support his analysis, findings, and decision; and, that detail will normally be placed in the endnotes.

V. Summary of the Partice' Position(s).

A. The Agency/Employer.

Threshold Challenges That The Subject Grievance is Not Arbitrable.

The essence of the Agency's position, as expressed initially in the grievance decision issued September 20, 2013; during the AC and hearing; and, in post-hearing submissione, is that the subject grievance is not arbitrable. While the Agency's first decision denied the grievance because it was filed with the wrong office; during the AC, at hearing, and in post-hearing submissions, the Agency elso claimed the grievance is berred because it was untimely and the Union filed an earlier Unifair Labor Practice (ULP) charge with the Federal Labor Relations Authority (FLRA) "over the same lasue."

As for the contention that the grievance is barred because the Union filled an earlier ULP, the Agancy argues...

- that the Union submitted e ULP an July 25, 2013, charging that the Agency's use of a new MOU on overtime procedures was improper;
- then on September 11, 2013, filed the subject grievance; and

 that the "issue in the ULP is in <u>cirect relation</u> to the issue in the union's written grievence and advanced in the arbitration hearing." [Emphasis added]

Citing 5 USC 7121(d) which provides that - Issues which may be reised under a negotiated grievence procedure may, in the discretion of the aggrieved party, be reised under that procedure or as an unfair labor practice, but not under both procedures; the Agency points out that the Federal Court reviewed the matter of a grievence being berred due to the filling of an unfair labor practice and ruled that a grievence is barred when (1) the same leave is the subject of a grievence and of the ULP charge, (2) that issue was relead in a prior ULP charge, and (3) the decision to file the ULP charge was within the discretion of the aggrieved party.²² Further, the Agency maintains that the FLRA has consistently held, "that an issue is relead within the meaning of section 7116(d) of the Statute at the time of the filing of the grievence or a ULP charge, even if the grievence or the ULP charge is not adjudicated on the merits.²³ Accordingly, the Agency maintains that, based on FLRA case law, the subject grievence is barred by the filing of the grievence or a daminate.

if, however, the Arbitrator does not find the grievance is barred by the earlier filed ULP, the Agency argues the grievance is procedurally defective because it was not filed in a timely manner.

As for the contention that the grievance is procedurally flawed because it was not filed in a timely meaner, the Agency contends that...

The parties' Master Agreement (MA), Article 31, Section e²⁴, allows the Arbitrator to decide the timeless of the grisvance if it is raised as a threshold issue. The Agency reads this provision as making "it very clear that a party does not waive an untimeliness issue during the processing of the grievance, even if that party does not inform the other party of the untimeliness issue" and, that "the negotiated language allows the issue of timeliness to be related at any time up to the time of a hearing before an Arbitrator." On this point, the Agency argues that the courts have said, "A knowing plaintiff has an obligation to file promptly or lose his claim²⁸; and that Elkouri & Elkouri provides...

If the language of an agreement is clear and unequivocal, an arbitrator generally will not give it a meaning other than that expressed...Even though the parties to an agreement disagree as to its meaning, an arbitrator who finds the language to be unembiguous will enforce the clear meaning...Arbitrators apply the principle that parties to a contract are charged with full knowledge of its provisions and of the significance of its language...Thus, the clear meaning of language may be enforced even though the results are harsh or contrary to the original expectations of one of the parties...[and thet]...Arbitrators expect the parties to pay due respect to the gristwance procedure, not only by using it, but also by observing its formel requirements.²²

Noting that the MA, Article 31, Section d, provides that "Griavances must be filed within forty (40) celender days of the date of the alleged grievable occurrence"; the Agency argues that since the Union was "aware of the presumed violation on July 3, 2013, that the grievance should have been filed within forty calendar days from their date. Pointing out that, the grievance form filed by the Union on September 11, 2013, provided that the violation complained of occurred on August 20, 2013²⁷; and, that the Union's ULP filed with the FLRA on July 25, 2013²⁸, provided that the presumed Agency violation occurred on July 3, 2013 – the Agency argues that the Union was clearly aware the presumed violation occurred on July 3²⁶, therefore, the grievance should have been filed within forty calendar days of the Union was clearly aware the presumed violation occurred on July 3²⁶, therefore, the grievance should have been filed within forty calendar days of that date; or, on or about, August 12, 2013, same thirty days before it was actually filed.

If, however, the Arbitrator does not find the grievance was untimely filed, the Agency then argues that the grievance is procedurally defective because it was filed with the wrong office.

As to the contention that the griovance is procedurally flawed because it was filed with the wrong office....

On this point, the Agency maintains that the subject grisvance should have been filed with the Complex Warden and not with the Regional Director. Here the Agency points out that Article 31, Section f, of the MA provides, in part;

"....when filing a grievance, the grievance will be filed with the Chief Executive Officer of the institution/fecility, if the grievance pertains to the action of an individual for which the Chief Executive Officer of the institution/facility has disciplinary authority over.....[Emphasis added]" Relying on the testimony of the Complex's Human Resources Manager²⁹; the Agency contends that the issue being grieved involved the scheduling and hiring of overtime; and that such assignments are done by the Lieutenants and/or the Captains of the various institutions within the Complex - Therefore, since the Warden has disciplinary authority over the subordinate supervisors/managers at the Complex, the grievence should have been filed with the Warden.

Finally, arguing that the technical requirements for filing a grievance were negotiated by the Union; the Agendy, maintains the Union should be expected to comply with the technical aspects of the negotiated procedure. The grievance was barred by the filing of a prior ULP; was untimely filed; and, filed with the wrong office; therefore, it should not be erbitrable. To support these conclusions the Agency cites eleven (11) erbitration decisions/awards involving the BOP and AFGE where the arbitrator denied the grievance for lack of procedural arbitratility.²⁰

Position on the Merits of the Grievance.

The comerstones of the Agency's position on the merits of this case are:

- That the parties' Master Agreement is a "national collective bargaining agreement" which covers all bargaining unit employees throughout the Agency, including those at the Buther Federal Correctional Complex, regardless of any AFGE Local atfillation.
- That the MA, in the Preamble and Article 1, Section c, clearly defines "the Union" as the Council of Prison Locals; and, identifies the Council as the exclusive representative of all bergaining unit employees, not the individual AFGE Locals.
- That the duty to bargain resides only at the level of the exclusive representative; and, absent an agreement between the parties providing for local negotiations or other delegation of authority, there is no duty to bargain below the level of the exclusive representative.³⁷
- 4. That various provisions in the MA (including Article 18, Section p.1, the primary provision identified in the subject grievance as having been violated) are the product of impact and implementation (I&I) bargaining at the rational level by the accusive representative; as such, the MA has established who is eligible for overline within the Agency, regardiese of focation; and, in accordance with the "cover by" doctrine, management does not have to bargain over metters already contained in or covered by the MA.³⁰ Furthermore, citing excerpts from a previous Bureau of Prisons arbitration decisions³⁰, management's actions in assigning overtime are covered by the "reserved rights" doctrine.

Noting that, Article 18, Section p 1, of the parties' Mester Agreement provides...

"...when management determines that it is necessary to pay overtime for poelsone/assignments normally filled by bargaining unit employees, qualified employees in the bargaining unit will receive first consideration for these assignments, which will be distributed and rotated equitably emong bargaining unit employees..."

The Agency argues that the a key problem with the subject case is that the Union, AFGE, has established three different locals at the Butner Complex; Locals 405, 406, and 3696; and, that Local 408 believes Article 18, Section p 1, of the MA limits assignment of outside hospital overtime to members of Local 408 before members of the other locals are assigned such overtime. Whereas, management believes that the provision applies to all qualified bargaining unit employees regardless of their local membership designation. Moreover, the Agency further argues that this dispute is not just between Local 408 and management, but also between Local 408 and the two other AFGE Locals at FCC Butner, Local 406 and 3696.

For the Agency, Local 406's position that - each respective local represents its own bargaining unit; and, as such, when management determines that it is necessary to pay overtime for positionalassignments normally filled by Local 408's bargaining unit employees, Local 406's bargaining unit employees should receive consideration for those assignments before other Local's BUEs - ignores the fact that all bargaining unit employees at Buther are covered by the MA; are in the same national bargaining unit; and, that bargaining unit is represented by the Council of Prison Locals.

FidC8 Code #14-50735-8. U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Primme, Federal Connectional Complex. Buttern North Caroling and the AFGE, AFL-CIO, Council of Priper Locale #33, Local 406 and Mr. Anthony Little continued:

Turning to the wording of Article 18, Section p 1, which starts off, "When management determines that it is necessary to pay overtime for positions/assignments normally filled by the bargaining unit employees..."; the Agency maintains that this wording does not limit the positions/assignments to one prison, or to one department, or to one local since the Master Agreement is a national collective bargaining agreement.³⁴ Therefore, it is argued, anytime management decides to use overtime to fill a position/assignment that normally would be filled with a bargaining unit employee, management must follow the subsequent requirements as detailed further in Section p 1.

Moving to the next portion of Article 18, Section p 1, which reads "...qualified employees in the bargaining unit will receive first consideration for these overtime assignments...." Then, noting that "qualified bargaining unit employees" are to receive first consideration; the Agency claims that the term "qualified" does not perisin to local union memoership; but rather, to the qualifications needed to perform the specific position/assignment. For example, the Agency argues that in the subject case, the overtime in question pertained to those assignments where inmates had to be taken out of the prison facility and placed in a community hospitel in order to receive appropriate medical care. Whenever, this happens, the Agency contends that, the BOP must have employees provide security and supervision over these inmates; and in order for any BOP employee to secont an inmate out of the secure confines of the prison, that employee must have received and passed specialized training, known as Basic Prisoner Transport (BPT) certification. Here, the Agency points out that any BOP employee can receive this certification, regardless of their position — A BOP teacher could have this certification, a BOP cook could have this certification. Additionally, non-bargaining unit employees, supervisors, and managers can also attend this training and receive BPT certification.

Furthermore, management must ensure the best possible security and safety to the public, the employees, and the inmeters. Noting that the work environment of a convectional facility is very different from most other employment, situations, the Agency points out that, the Supreme Court has addressed this fact and found that prison administrators are entitled to more deference on the issue of internal security.³⁰ Also, the Agency maintains that the Federal Labor Relations Authority (FLRA or Authority) has also agreed with this judgment providing that "A Federal convectional facility has special security concerns which may not be present at other locations.³⁰

Accordingly, the Agency argues, if management is going to fill an outside hospital assignment with overtime, only those employees who have the BPT certification are "qualified" to work the overtime subignment. However, based on this portion of the provision, BPT certified bargeining unit employees would receive first consideration before BPT certified non-bargeining unit employees could receive consideration.

So, according to the Agency the section which reads, "....bargaining unit employees receive first consideration" is based upon the distinction between qualified bargaining unit employees and qualified non-bargaining unit employees; not the differences in AFGE Local effiliation. If that wars the case, the Agency argues, there should be some wording in the provision that identifies it must be by individual AFGE Local. However, the Agency points out that the term "Local" is nowhere to be found in Article 1⁶, Section p 1.

Turning to the last portion of Article 18, Section p 1'o wording "...which will be distributed and rotated equilably among bargaining unit employees," the Agency notes that "nowhere in this language does it state this is done by individual local union designation." For the Agency, since the wording of Section p 1, does not designate by local union, or any order for that matter, it is clear that the overtime opportunities are among all bargaining unit employees; negardless of what department they work in, and regardless of individual local union designation.

According to the Agency, Article 19, Section p 1's provisions, as negatiated by the Council of Prison Locals, require that an employee be qualified for the assignment and that bargaining unit employees receive first consideration over non-bargaining unit employees. Therefore, as long as a Sureau of Prison's bargaining unit employee is qualified to work a particular overtime assignment, then he or she is allowed to be considered along with <u>all</u> other bargaining unit employees, with such assignments to be rotated equitably among <u>all</u> other bargaining unit employees. The determination of who receives first consideration (bargaining unit over non-bargaining unit) and who is eligible for bargaining unit overtime (qualified bargaining unit employees over non-qualified) is already covered by the Master Agreement; and, the local institution has no duty to bargain over these aspects. [Emphasis added]

Throughout its arguments on the mants of the subject grisvance the Agency has sliuded that the Union's position on assignment of overlime may someway infringe on management's rights under 5 USC 7106(s), noting the FLRA, has held that: the decision whether or not to fill vacant positions is encompassed within an agency's right to assign

FMCS Case #14-50738-8, U.S. Department of Autice, Federal Buranu of Princes, Federal Convolutional Complex, Burney, North Carulina and the AFGE, AFL-CIC, Council of Prince Locals #53, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Little continues:

employees under Section 7106(a)(2)(A) of the Statuts³⁷; proposals requiring an agency to fill vacancies interferes with management's rights under Section 7106(a) of the Statuts³⁸; the right to assign work under 5 USC 7108(a)(2)(B) encompasses the right to determine the particular duties to be assigned, when work assignments will occur, and to whom or what positions the duties will be assigned⁵⁰, as well as, the right to assign overtime and to determine when the overtime will be performed⁵⁰; and, proposals that would require menagement to assign overtime duty to employees when it would otherwise choose to terminate their tours of duty are nonnegotiable.⁴¹

The Agency also noted that the FLRA has stated an agency has the right to determine the qualification of employees assigned to jobs, and that right cannot be intringed through interpretation of a contract by an Arbitrator. On this point the Agency class VAMC, Togue and AFGE Local 2610, 17 FLRA 953, 964 (1965), where FLRA reviewed an arbitration award where the arbitrator field that the agency violated the contract for equilable distribution of overtime assignments – The Arbitrator found that the agency had been detailing an employee to bijob that provided some overtime and then the agency stopped the detail because the employee was not qualified to perform the work. The FLRA set the award eside stating that it is management's right to detaimine the necessary qualifications for the job. In another case, the FLRA stated that an Arbitrator could not compel management to fill positions with individual grievents who contanded that they met the agency qualification requirements; finding that the award prevented the agency from applying its interpretation to qualification standards and thereby denied management its right to make selections in filling positions under 5 USC §7105(a)(2)(c).⁴²

The Agency further caulions, that arbitrators should not substitute their judgment over management's decisions; unless it can be shown that management abused their authority. Citing Elkowi the Agency maintains that many arbitrators have recognized that except as restricted by the agreement the right to achedule work remains with management. According to the Agency, to conclude that management must fill outside hospital posts with employees from only one local union at FCC Butnet would be an abrogation of management's rights; and thist the language in Articles 5, 9 and 18 would be meaningless since the Master Agreement pertains to all bargaining unit employees in the BOP. Furthermore, the Agency argues that an arbitrator has already defined Article 18, Section p's, provision for FCC Butner — Finding that bargaining unit employees from all the local union at FCC Butter had to be considered together in granting overtime opportunities; moneover, that decision was uphed by the FERA.⁴⁹ Agein, the Article 18, Section p., provision does not state that management must use qualified bargaining unit amployees from a particular local union first.

In conclusion, the Agency argues, that the Union's previously filed ULP bars the instant grievance and, therefore should be diamissed. If not, the Union's untimely filing of the grievance and/or filing the grievance with the wrong office violates the negotiated provisions of the Master Agreement and must be dismissed. As to the merits, the Agency maintains that the Union falled to meet its burden; that the wording of the relevant Master Agreement provisions are clear and conclear, furthermore, a prior Arbitration decision and FLRA rules; supports the Agency's arguments in this case - Therefore, the Agency respectivity requests that the grievance by denied.

8. The Union/Grisyant.

Threshold Challenges That The Subject Grievance is Not Arbitrabie.

The Union acknowledges that the Agency's final decision on the subject grievence, denying it because it was filed with the wrong office, constituted a threshold challenge. However, the Union asked that the Arbitrator take note that the Agency's further threshold challenges – That the grievence is barred because of an earlier filed unifier labor practice, and/or was untimely were never raised during the processing of the grievence; and were not raised by the Agency until at the administrative conference with the Arbitrator. Noting that the parties' Master Agreenestit, in Article 31, Section e, only provides that "the arbitrator will decide timetimess if relead as a threshold lasue"; and that the MA is otherwise allent on the raising of procedural, or any other, arbitratolity guestions, as well as, an arbitrator's authority to address such issues; the Union questioned if it should have been forewarded of such challenges.

Nevertheless, like the Agercy, the Union reminds the Arbitrator that he is bound by the four corners of the parties' Manter Agreement. Noting that Section 32, Section h, in part provides -- "The Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of: 1. This Agreement or 2, Published Fedaral Bureau of Prisone policies and regulations." - The Union argues that the Agency is raising threshold issues not contemplated in the MA; that the MA only addresses threshold issues in one place and that te, as noted above, Article 31, Section e, regarding the threshold issue of "timetiness."

As for the Agency's contention that the grievance is barred because the Union filed an earlier ULP, the Union argues...

- that the FLRA has found for a grievance to be barred from consideration under Section 7116(d) by an earlier-filed ULP charge;
 - the issue that is the subject matter of the grievance must be the same as the issue that is the subject matter of the ULP;
 - such issue must have been earlier raised under the ULP procedures; and
 - the selection of the ULP procedures must have been at the discretion of the apprieved party.⁴⁴

In determining whether a grievance and a ULP charge involve the same issue, the Union notas that FLRA examines whether the ULP charge and the grievance arose from the same set of factual circumstances and whether the legal theories advanced in support of the ULP charge and the grievance, in the substantially similar.⁴⁵ If the issue rated in the ULP is not the same issue addressed in the grievance, then the matter is endering and the grievance is not barred by the prior filling of an ULP. Similarly, if the legal theory advanced in the ULP is not the same as that advanced in the grievance, then the grievance is not barred and the grievance is not barred and the grievance, then the grievance is not barred and the matter is properly before the Arbitrator.

The Union notes that two ULPs were filed by AFGE Local 408 prior to the filing of the subject grievance. The first, filed on May 18, 2012, concerned a MOU Local 408 maintained was agreed to and signed by its President and the Complex Warden[®] on or about March 12, 2012, addressing the issue of overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program in the Federal Medical Center (FMC) and Federal Correctional Institution-2 (FCI-2). While being assured the MOU was in affect, Local 408 was then informed that, as a formality, the Warden of Federal Correctional Institution-1 (FCI-1) and the Low Security Correctional Institution (LSCI); as well as, the Warden of FCI-2, would have to also sign the MOU. On the same day, March 12, 2012, the Warden of FCI-1 and the LSCI, called for all three Unions at Butner, Local 405, Local 406, and Local 3696, to begin negotiations for a "One complex computerized program." Having not received a finalized signed copy of the MOU, on March 16, 2012, at the negotiations for the one-complex computerized program, Local 408 asked that it be provided a copy of the finalized MOU for its overtime hiring procedures. At which time Local 466 was informed that the Warden of FGI-1 and the LSCI was taking Local 408's MOU on overtime procedures off the table." After which the Local filed its ULP accusing the FCC Butner with bad faith negotiation.

Accordingly, the Union maintains that in the first ULP the Local 400 was accusing the Agency of bad faith negotiation and sought the Agency's finalization and acceptance of the MOU exidensing overtime hinting procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program within the institutions it represented, FMC and FCI-2; and was based on violation of the Federal Labor Relations Statute 5 USC 7116(a)(1, 2, 4, and 8). This ULP was resolved by a Settlement Agreement signed by the Local 408 President and the FCC Warden, and approved by the FLRA February 25, 2013,⁴⁷ and final execution of the MOU negotiated and approved by Local 408 and FCC management, elso on February 25, 2013, on Local 408's overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program within FCI-2 and the FMC.⁴⁶

The second ULP filed by Local 408, July 25, 2013⁴⁰, concerned FCC Butner's "repudiation⁸⁰ and violation" of the FLRA approved Settlement Agreement signed February 25, 2013, and failure to honor the provisions of the MOU between Local 408 and FCC Butner finalized and executed also on February 25, 2013 - By signing a new Memonandum of Understanding concerning overtime thing procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program with AFGE Locals 405 and 3896, which the Agency maintained superseded the MOU with Local 408 signed February 25, 2013; and, therefore, would no longer be honored. FMCS Came #14-50735-8, U.S. Department of Junitys, Federal Surseu of Prisons, Federal Complianti Complex, Buther, North Camiling and the AFGE, AFL-230, Council of Prison Locale #33, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Little continuent:

Accordingly, the Union argues here that the ULP was accusing the Agency of repudiation and violation of the FLRA approved sattlement agreement and its MOU with Local 408, finalized and executed on February 25, 2013; again based on violation of the Federal Labor Relations Statute, 5 USC 7116(a)(1, 5, 7, and 8).

While, both ULPs and the subject grievance involve the MOU negotiated between Local 408 and FCC Bulner on the overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program within the institutions it represented, FMC and FCL2 from October 26, 2011, to March 5, 2012, that was finalized/secured on February 25, 2019; the Union notes that neither ULP alleged a contract violation, and particularly, a violation of Article 18, Section p. 1. In addition neither ULP alleged that bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 were adversely affected and owed back pay under the Back Pay Act 5 USC 5596.

Accordingly, the Union requests that the Agency's threshold challenge that the subject grievance is barred by the Union's filing of a previous ULP be denied.

As for the Agency's contention that the grievance is procedurally flawed because it was not filled in a fimally menner, the Union contends that...

The Union afters the following smalline for key events leading up to the filling of the subject galevance....Following initiation of neoclations between Local 408 and FCC Butner management on October 26, 2011, on the issue of overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program for bergaining unit employees represented by Local 408 in the Federal Medical Center and FCI-2 at Butner, on March 5, 2012. agreement was reached on a new MOU...On May 18, 2012, Local 408 files the first of two UEPs...On February 25, 2013, the FLRA approved settlement agreement was reached and Local 408s MOU was fully supplied and FCC management acread to honor said MOU... On July 2, 2013, FCC Butner management signs MOU with Locate 406 and 3696...On July 3, 2013. FCC management notifies Local 406 that the February 25, 2013. MOU with Local 408 is superseded and will not be honored and that it intends to implement the new overtime procedures agreed to in the MOU with Local 405 and 3685....July 25, 2013, Local 408 files the ascond ULP....On August 12, 2013, Local 408 becomes aware that FCC Butner started the new overtime hiring procedures on August 11, 2013, and that Local 408's BUEs are being affected...On August 13, 2013. Local 408 attempts informal resolution...On August 15, 2013, Local 408 becomes eware that there are apparent glitches in the new overtime hiring procedures... On September 11, 2013, Local 408 files a formal grievance alleging that the Complex Warden⁵¹ violated 5 UBC 7118 the parties' Master Agreement, Anticle 6 and 18; as well as the Back Pay Act when he changed the way bargeining unit employees represented by AFGE Local 408 were assigned/hired for overtime from that agreed to and outlined In the MOU executed between Local 408 and FCC Butner management on February 25, 2013, to the propertyres provided for and outlined by the MOU executed July 3, 2013, between FCC Butner management and AFGE Locate 405 and 3695; thereby slopping over end/or denying 505s represented by Local 408 the opportunity to be assigned mired for overtime.

White the Union acknowledges receiving a memorandum from the Complex Warden on July 3, 2013, that the overtime hiring procedures agreed to in the MOU between FCC Butner management and AFGE Locals 406 and 3896 would take effect on August 11, 2013 -- It was not until August 12, 2013, that Local 406 edually learned that the new procedures were being followed, and August 20, 2013, that Local 408 had knowledge that BUEs represented by Local 408 were being adversely effected by the new procedures. Accordingly, on September 11, 2013, thirty-one (31) calendar days after actual knowledge that the new overtime hiring procedures were being used and twenty-three (23) calendar days after learning that BUEs represented by Local 406 were being adversely affected that the formal grievance was filed.

Furthermore, as noted on the grievance form Local 408 views the actions initiated by the Butner Complex. Warden's execution of the MOU with Locals 405 and 3696, setting new outside hiring procedures which adversity affect BUEs represented by Local 408 as a continuing violation of 5 USC 7116, the parties' Master Agreement, and the Back Pay Act, starting on August 12, 2013, through at least the date of the hearing in the subject case. As the formal grisvance form clearly showed the alleged violations and resulting adverse actions ware occurring daily the Union maintains the "continuing violation doctrine" explices.

Citing Elkouri & Elkouri⁶² the Union argues that many arbitrators have held that "continuing" violations of an agreement (as opposed to a single isolated and completed transaction) give due to "continuing" grievances in the

same sense that the act complained of may be said to be repeated from day to day, with each day treated as a new "occurrence." These arbitrators permit the filling of such grievances at any time, although any back pay would ordinarily accrue only from the date of filing

As the grievance was filed within the forty (40) calendar days of the date that Local 408 actually learned that the new hiring procedures were being applied and that EUEs represented by Local 408 were being adversely effected; Local 408 actually field in the subject grievance was timely and not procedurally field.

As to the Agency's contention that the grevance is procedurally flawed because it was filed with the wrong office...

The Union notes that the Agency, in its final decision on the subject grievance, at hearing, and in post-hearing submissions, argues that the subject grievance with filed with the wrong office - That is, it was filed with the Regional Director and not with the Complex Warden. Here the Agency's argument is that the Complex's Lieutenants are the BOP employees who make the assignments of overtime; and, it is their actions which have resulted in BUEs represented by Local 408 allegedly being advarsely affected. Therefore, since it is the Warden who has disciplinary authority over the Lieutenants; in accordance with Article 31, Section 11, the grievance should have been filed with the Warden.

However, the Union argues that the grievance concerns actions by the FCC Butner Complex Warden not subordinate employees. While acknowledging that the Complex Lieutenants are the individuals who actually schedule and assign overtime; it was the Complex Warden who executed the MOU with Locals 405 and 3696 which established the new overtime hiring procedures; and who authorized and directed the change of procedures which the Lieutenants follow in identifying and salecting employees who will be assigned overtime. Therefore, it is the Complex Warden's actions that the Union claims violated 5 USC 7118; the parties' Master Agreement, Articles 6 and 18; as well as the Back Pay Act. Clearly, as the testimony of the Butner Human Resources Manager confirmed, the Lieutenants were simply following the orders of the Complex Warden as directed through the Institution Wardens, Associate Wardens, and Capterins.⁵⁴

Since the subject grievance concerned the direct actions of the Complex Warden and his decision -- to approve the new overtime hiring procedures established with his execution of the Memorandum of Understanding with Local 405 and 3898 on July 2, 2013; that the overtime hiring procedures established by the MOU with Local 408 would not be followed; and to direct all subordinate staff throughout the complex to follow the new overtime billing procedures; that resulted in BUEs represented by Local 408 being slipped over for overtime assignments and advarsely affected. Therefore, in accordance with Anticle 31, Section F2, the Union filed the subject grievance with Regional Director.²⁵

Since the subject grievance was appropriately filed with the Regional Director, the Union exits the Arbitrator to deny the Agency's preshold challenge.

Position on the Merits of the Grievance.

Before addressing the merits of the grievance, the Union spent considerable time "aducating" the Arbitrator on the unique structure and characteristics of the labor-management relationship at the Buiner Federal Correctional Complex.

As noted above, one of the cornerstones of the Agency's position on the ments of the grievence is that the Mester Agreement clearly astablishes that the AFGE, Council of Prison Locals is the exclusive representative of the e Bureau-wide bargaining unit comprised of all BOP employees as defined in 5 USC §7103.³⁶ Therefore, the AFGE Locals, such as Local 408, do not represent employees in their own bargaining unit.

Acknowledging that the Cauncil of Prison Locals is the exclusive representative of the Bureau-wide bargaining unit; Local 408 strongly maintains that it, as well as, all the other AFGE Locals at the various BOP Institutiona/facilities, does in fact represent its own identifiable group of bargeining unit employees. Furthermore, according to the Union, BOP management has a history of recognizing the autonomy of the Locals, such as Local 408, as the representative of a distinct group of BUEs. In fact, at the time of the hearing on the subject grievance there were three AFGE Locals representing their own distinct group of employees at the Buther Complex, Local 405 representing some 262 or approximately twenty-four percent of the BUEs, 408 representing some 662 or approximately fifty-six percent of the BUEs, and 3698 represented some 240 or approximately twenty percent of the BUEs at Butner.

Through testimony and presentation of exhibits the Union then explained the structure and documented the history of the Locals and their relationship with the Council. As presented, the highlights of Buther's development and the establishment of AFGE Locals and their respective representational role are -- In 1994 Buther facility consisted of two institutions, the Federal Conectional Institution, a medium security facility, (designated as FCI-1) and the Federal Prison Camp. At that time there was only one AFGE Local, Local 3696, representing Buther employees. In September 1995 a new facility was activated, the Low Security Conactional Institution (designated as LSCI) and a second AFGE Local, Local 405, was established to represent employees, easigned to the LSCI and the Camp. In 2000 the Federal Medical Center was activated. With the opening of the FMC, Buther now was comprised of four institutions, FCI-1, the LSCI, the FMC, and the Federal Prison Camp. However, even though Buther now consisted of four institutions there was still only two AFGE Locals at Buther, Local 3696 and Local 405. Then in December 2000 AFGE Local 406 was estimated. With the activation of Local 408 statif in the four institutions at Buther ware represented by three Locals – Local 3696 represented BUEs in FCI-1, Local 405 represented BUEs in the LSCI and the Camp, and Local 408 represented BUEs in FCI-1, Local 405 represented BUEs in the LSCI and the Camp, and Local 408 represented BUEs in FCI-1, Local 405 represented BUEs in the LSCI and the Camp, and Local 408 represented BUEs in the FMC. In 2006 a second medium security Federal Correctional Institution; was opened (designated FCI-2).

With the activation of FGI-2 Butner became a Complex, and, decided to consolidate departments. This consolidation required the Locals to figure out how they were going to be consigured. The three Local presidents split up the department functions and institutions.

Accordingly, as of 2012 BUEs in the four institutions at Buther were represented as follows⁶⁷ - Local 406's institutional coverage was the LSCI, Local 408's institutional coverage was the FMC and FCI-2; Local 3898's initiational coverage was FCI-1; and Central Office/Re-entry Ralaigh CCM activities were represented by Logal 3546. While each Local was still identified by its organizational coverage, with the consolidation of departments each respective Local also represented employees assigned to/working in specific operational divisions or functional areas³⁸ which might change by institution. Therefore, while Local 405 was recognized as representing BUEs in the LSCI, it only represented employees assigned to the following divisional/functional activities -Recreation/Education, UNICOR, Laundry, Food Services, Warehouse, Trust Fund, and R & D within all four institutions, as well as, Connectional Services and Case managem/Counselors/Secretaries in the LSC: Local 405 was recognized as representing BUEs in the FMC and FCI-2, it only represented employees assigned to the following divisional/functional activities - Connectional Services in FMC and FCI-2, Medicel in all four institutions, Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries in FMC and FCI-2, Psychistry Services in all four institutions, and Psychology Bervices in FMC, FCI-2 and LSCI; Local 3698 was recognized as representing BUEs in FCI-1, it only represented employees assigned to the following divisional/functional activities - Facilities, Salety, and Religious Services in all four institutions, as well as, Correctional Services, Case managers/Counselors/Secretarias, and Psychology Services in FCI-1; and Local 3545 representing Central Office/Re-Entry/Raleigh CCM in all four institutions.

While, AFGE and the Council of Prison Locals are the recognized exclusive representative of all BUEs in the Bureau, functionally that duty relates only to the negotiation of the Master Agreement and handling Bureau wide multi-institution issues and grevences. Starting with the Preemble the MA envisions representation and regotiation at the institutional/tecility level through AFGE Locals⁵⁵. For example, Article 2 dealing with "Joint Labor Management Relations" provides in Section 1 that "The parties at the national level endorse the concept of regular labor management meetings at the local level...<u>The actual procedures for local labor management meetings will be neootlated locally.</u>" [Emphasis added] Article 3 dealing with "Governing Regulations" provides in Section a 1, "...local supplemental agreements will take precedence over any Agency Issuence derived or generated at the local level..." and at Section 4.5, "...when local proposed policy issuances are mede, the local Union President will be notified...and the manner in which local negotiations are conducted will persist added]. And, Article 18, Section 9, begins with "Specific procedures mediated local level..." (Emphasis added) in fact, the term "local negotiation and/or local negotiations" is mentioned some fourteen times; and the term "Local Supplemental agreements" (S)" is mentioned some five times. Ground rules for local negotiation of supplemental agreements are even presented as an appendix to the MA.

The Union then explained how overtime was assigned and distributed up until the execution of the new procedures by the Complex Warden in 2013⁵⁰. As of 2000, and up to 2013, each institution had its own overtime procedures

negotiated by the Local representing BUEs in that institution, in accordance with Article 18, Section p; i.e. by Local 3696 for FCI-1, Local 405 for LSCI, and Local 408 for FMC and FCI-2. Since each Local represented BUEs within a specific institution, its BUEs were given first consideration when posting overtime within that Institution or involving immetes from that institution. While each Local negotiated its own procedure, either with a formal MOU or some other policy issuance, Local 408's first formal MOU addressing overtime hiding procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program was executed on November 4, 2010⁶¹, for FMC and FCI-2 BUEs. And, in 2011 the first multi-local MOU was executed between Butner and Locale 3696, 406 and 408 pertaining to the handling of treatment at the FMC and outside hospital coverage of immetes unable to receive medical treatment at his assigned institution, FCI-1 and LSCI²². These negotiated procedures were understood and respected by the Agency.

Accordingly, the Union argues that these negotiated procedures established a pattern of behavior that became a condition of employment; that is a "pest-practice" had been established". While a matter can qualify as a condition of employment and become an established condition of employment either through bargaining of through practice³⁴; the Union submits the negotiated and established procedures followed by each AFGE Local at Buther became an established pattern of behavior and condition of employment that complied with the MA, Article 18, Section p; and, the change in overtime hiring procedures directed by the Complex Warden violated the pest practices of the parties at Buther FCC.

According to the Union, in October 2011, as a result of a controversy that had arisen regarding outside matical overtime, the three Locals sent management a joint proposal which adhered to the provisions of Article 18, Section p, with respect to the first consideration issue. The Agency then made a counter proposal changing all MOU's and establishing one consolidated roster program for overtime procedures. This counter proposal was rejected by the three locals; and, Local 408's proposed MOU was agreed to and signed by Local 408's President and management's representative in March 2012. When the Union requested the copy of the agreement signed by both parties, the Agency said there was no agreement. As a result, Local 408 filed its first ULP in May 2012. Testimony and documentary evidence, clearly showed that after the ULP was filed, from May 2012 through February 2013, Local 408 and management engaged an intensive negotiation which included approximately gively meetings and even the intervention of a mediator, without success.

With the assistance of the FLRA a Settlement Agreement was entered encing the ULP and requiring the parties to execute the Local 408 MOU, which was completed turing the period February 25-29, 2013, and was effective immediately. The FLRA approved Settlement Agreement also required that the Agency post a "Notice to Employees" in which Butner management acknowledged its "duty to bargain in good faith with Local 408....land would]... execute and honor the Memorandum of Understanding on Overtime Hiring Procedures and Utilization of Correctional Services Roster Program with AFGE, Local 408." Furthermore, the executed MOU provided that "(the MOU supersedes all previous MOU's dealing with Overtime aligned by the Agency and Local 408. Any new negotiations concerning the procedures for overtime will review the procedures listed here and be incorporated for negotiations in the new negotiations...Should any issues/concerns arise as a result of this MOU, the Agency and Local 0408 agree to discuss them within seven (7) working days of notifications of the issue or concern."

With regard to the ULP settlement requirements, the Union points out that Butner management did post the required notices and emailed copies of the notice to all BUEs represented by Local 408. However, the Union maintains that by March 18, 2013, that is, within sighteen (18) days of the execution of the agreement with the FLRA, the Agency continued its efforts to get a complex-wide overtime procedura/roster accepted; and on May 1, 2013, Local 408's President received an email regarding a meeting for the discussion of complex overtime.

Here the Union points out, that during the hearing, the Agency representative argued that the February 2018 MOU provided for continuation of negotiations and, therefore, the Agency was entitled, and Local 408 was obligated, to negotiate with management. However, the Union contends that this argument is not supported by the process that led the perties to the Fabruary 2013 agreement and the literal meaning and the obvious intentions of the perties when they entered into that settlement agreement and MOU.

It is the Union's belief that the Agency's actions clearly show that management never had the Intention of complying with the February 23, 2013, agreement. Prior to the February 2013 agreement, the Agency's position was that it intended to implement a complex wide overtime procedure. Local 408 fercely opposed the Agency's stance. It was in this scenario that the Agency entered into the agreement. However, as the activities that took place afterwards show, the Agency's conduct and execution of the agreement before the FLRA was a farce.

The Union argues that once the ULP was resolved and FLRA was no longer involved, the Agency fall free to ignore its newly executed MOU with Local 408. Clearly, the Agency's actions from March 2013 make a mockery of the process and efforts of FLRA and Local 408 to resolve the ULP. The Agency's actions are clear evidence that it had no intention of complying with the February 2019 Settlement Agreement and the MOU executed through FLRA's assistance. With Local 408's refusal to engage in new negotiations, Buther memagament decided to push through the complex wide agreement with the other two Locals. That action clearly demonstrates bed faith negotiation on the part of the Agency with the FLRA and Local 408 is settling the ULP and executing the February 2013 MOU with Local 408.

Here the Union points to 5 USC 7114, which provides in part:

"... The duty of an agency and an exclusive representative to negotiate in good failth under subsection (a) of this section shall include the obligation -- to approach the negotiations with a sincere resolve to reach a collective bargaining agreement..."

On this point the Union maintains that the FLRA has said "in determining whether a party has fulfilled its bargaining responsibility, the totality of the circumstances in a case must be considered."⁵⁵ In other words, the Authority generally shunts the application of par se rules to identify bad faith acts during the bargaining process; instead, it looks at the evidence as a whole to evaluate whether a party has complied with the mandate of Section 7114(b) to (among other things) "approach the negotiations with a sincere resolve to reach a collective bargaining agreement...." In so doing, the Authority looks at the parties' actions to determine whether a party "has attempted to evade or frustrate the bargaining responsibility" outlined in Section 7114(b).⁵⁵

As for the Agency's negotiations with the other two Locals for a complex wide overline procedura/roster; Local 408's President was told by both the former Complex Warden and FCI-2's Warden that the Agency could not effer into a complex wide overline procedura/roster unless all three Locals' Presidents agreed and algosit off an the agreement. Therefore, considering the facts of this case it is obvious that Butner management negotiated the joint MOU with Locals 3696 and 405 in bad faith knowing that the lack of agreement by all three Locals, the complex wide overtime procedura/roster would violate Article 18 (p).

For the Union there is little doubt that the Agency's actions subrequent to the execution of the FLRA approved settlement agreement and MOU with Local 408 to foreclose on its promises and proceed with the execution of an agreement with only two of the three AFGE Locals at Butner and activate a complex-wide overtime procedure and router violated Article 18 (p) and caused BUEs represented by Local 408 to be akipped over and denied finit consideration in the assignment of overtime, thereby suffering an alteration of their overtime benefits.

Here the Union asks the Arbitrator to fully consider the testimony of Local 408's Chief Steward[®] and documentary evidence⁴⁵ presented regarding the Union's review of data from overtime algn-up tists prior to and effective combined roster was implemented and the overtime hitting to determine the effect on BUEs represented by Local 409. That review locked at a sampling of overtime assigned/worked during elevent (11) pay presented by Local 2013 through June 2015 and; the Union believes clearly found many instances where BUEs represented by Local 408 were akipped in the designment of overtime. The akipping over was shown to have occurred on numerous occasions and in various scenarios. Accordingly, the Union argues that its review and the resulting documentation entered into evidence clearly show, where all BUEs were indicated in a single sign-up sheet:

> Every time that a BUE not represented by Local 408 was assigned/worked overtime within institutions/department/posts represented by Local 408, a BUE represented by Local 408 had been skipped over.

- Whenever a non-bergaining unit employee was assigned/worked overtime in an institution/department/post represented by Local 408, a BUE represented by Local 408 had been skipped over. And,
- Where employees who were graded GS-12 and above, who should NEVER be allowed to work overtime... Every time any employee graded GS-12 and above worked overtime, not only BUEs represented by Local 408, but BUEs represented by Locals 3698 and 405 were skipped over.

The Union also submitted evidence that "List Exempt Overtime Logs;" which it claims were supposed to be used to make overtime assignments only in emergency circumstances, have been abused. Here the Union's review found instances where employees were assigned/worked overtime continuously over short periods of time through the use of the "List Exempt," which, the Union claims would be almost impossible.

In order to quantify the estimated amount of overtime pay BUEs represented by Local 408 were denied by being skipped over, the Union's study used the salary for grade GS-08, step 6, as the average pay of a BUE represented by Local 408.

Admitting that its review was not a "professional study;" and, that there might be errors, the Union points out that their review clearly showed:

- During the August October 2013 period BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 6,154 hours of overtime; at an estimated hourly rate of \$40.04 that amounts to approximately \$245,406.00 in missed overtime pay.
- In November 2013 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 4,594 hours, at the estimated hourly rate of \$40.04 that emounted to some \$183,943.00 in missed overtime pay.
- In December 2013 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 2,054 hours, josing some \$82,643.00 in overtime pay.
- In January 2014 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 1,720 hours, losing same \$68,889.00 in overtime pay.
- In July 2014 BUEs represented by Local 408 ware skipped over for an estimated 5,184 hours, losing some \$207,567.00 in overtime pay.
- And, in June 2015 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 2,572 hours, losing some \$106,987.00 in overtime pay.

In total the Union argues that its limited review of overtime rosters between the period August 2013 and June 2015 found BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over and lost out of an estimated 22,388 hours of overtime; and, were therefore, deprived of an estimated \$896,415.00 of overtime pay

In summery, the Union argues that its limited review shows that the Agency's actions resulted in BUEs represented by Local 408 being skipped over in the assignment/bining of overtime during the pariod August 2013 through June 2015 in violation of the parties' MA. Article 18, Section p; thereby, being adversely affected through unjustified and unwarranted personnel actions that resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of all or part of the pay, allowances, or differentials of the BUEs represented by Local 408 in violation of the Back Pey Act.⁶⁹

Here the Union points out that the Back Pay Act provides in part that an employee "is entitled, on correction of the personnel action, to receive, for the period for which the personnel action was in effect -

 an amount equal to all or any part of the pay, allowances, or differentials, as applicable which the employee normally would have earned or received during the period if the parsonnel action had not occurred, less any amounts earned by the employee through other employment during that period; and reasonable attorney fees related to the personnel action which, with respect to any decision relating to an unfair labor practice or a grievance processed,....*

Furthermore, the Union points out that the FLRA has ruled⁷⁰ that the threshold requirement for entitlement of attorney's fees under the BPA is a finding that the grisvant was affected by an unjustified or universanted personnel action, which resulted in the withdrawel or reduction of the grisvant's pay, allowances, or differentiate. Once such a finding is made, the BPA further requires that an award of attorney's fees be:

- in conjunction with an award of back pay to the grievant on correction of the personnal action;
- reasonable and related to the personnel action; and
- in accordance with the standards established under 5 U.S.C. sec 7701(g) which pertain to attorney-fee awards issued by the Merit Systems Protection Soard.

Furthermore, the Union also points out that the FLRA has ruled that the threshold requirement for an award of attorney's fees under the BPA is a finding that the grievent was affected by an unjustified or unwarranted personnel action, which resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of the grievant's pay, allowances, or differentials. Once such a finding is made, fees may be awarded in accordance with the standards setablished in 5 USC 7701(9).⁷¹

To obtain fees, a party must prevail in the arbitration.⁷² To qualify as a prevailing party, an individual must have received "an enforceable judgment or astilement" which directly benefited him or her. For example, an arbitrator's reduction of a suspension to a reprimend qualified the grisvent as the prevailing party.⁷⁰ Aleo, an individual may be a prevailing party when he or she prevails on one theory of the case but fails under another theory.⁷⁴

Accordingly, the Union asks the Arbitrator to find in its favor and uphold the subject grievance. If the Arbitrator decides in the Union's favor and issues an Award where Local 408 prevails, then the Union is entitled to attorney's fees if it complies with the criteria of 5 USC 7701 (g).

VL Discussion, Analysis, and Findings.

In order to properly address the primary quastions and issues raised in this grievance, it is necessary to have a clear understanding of the events and actions taken by the parties in response to those events leading up to August 11, 2013, and AFGE Local 408's automission of the grievance that is the subject of this arbitration. And, a brief receip of the development of the Buther FCC will help us focus on those events and actions.

The Federal Bureau of Prisons operates several different types of facilities, including individual Correctional Institutions, Detention Centers, Prison Camps, Transfer Centers, Medical Centers, Penitentiaries, and Metropoliten Correctional Centers; as well as, fourteen Federal Correctional Centers (FCC), one of which is the Bulling FCC in North Caroline. As was explained through the testimony of Local 408's previous and current President, as supported through documentary evidence submitted and accepted...

- In 1994 Buther consisted of two facilities, the Federal Correctional Institution known locally as FCI-1 and a Federal Prison Camp, and had one AFGE Local, number 3696, representing the facilities bargeining unit employees (BUEs). In September 1995 a new facility was activated at Buther, the Low Security Correctional Institution known locally as LSCI or Low, and a second AFGE Local, number 405, was edded to represent BUEs in the new facility.
- On February 6, 1898, a new Master Agreement between the Federal Bureau of Prisons (the Agency) and the American Federation of Government Employees (AFGE), AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals – 33 (the Union) is the exclusive representative of the nationwide consolidated bergaining unit; while AFGE Locals function as the Union's agent and affiliate for the purpose of representing bargaining unit employees at the institution/facility level.⁷⁶
- In year 2000 the Federal Medical Center, known as FMC, was activated. With this new facility Butnet now had four institutions -- the FCI-1, the Camp, LSCI and the FMC; and, in

December AFGE activated the third Butner Local, number 408, to represent BUEs in the FMC.

- In 2006, a second medium security Federal Correctional Institution was opened at Butner, known as FCI-2. Accordingly, BUEs were represented as follows - Local 405's institutional coverage was the ESCI; Local 406's institutional coverage was the FMC and FCI-2; Local 3696's institutional coverage was FCI-1.
- With the activation of FCI-2 Butner became a Complex; and, management decided to consolidate departments. This consolidation required the three AFGE Locals to figure out how they were going to be configured. The lines Local presidents split up the department functions and institutions While such Local was still identified generally by it organizational coverage, with the consolidation of departments each respective Local also represented employees assigned to working in specific operational divisional or functional areas, which might change by institution⁷⁶...
 - While, Local 405 was recognized as representing BUEs in the LSCI, it now represented employees assigned to the following divisional/functional activities - Recreation/Education, UNICOR, Laundry, Food Services, Warehouse, Trust Fund, and R & D within all four institutions, as well as, Correctional Services and Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries in the LSCI;
 - Local 408 was recognized as representing BUEs in the FMC and FCI-2, il now represented employees assigned to the following divisional/functional activities - Correctional Services in FMC and FCI-2, Medical in all four institutions, Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries in FMC and FCI-2, Psychiatry Services in all four institutions, and Psychology Services in FMC, FCI-2 and LSCI; and
 - Local 3896 was recognized as representing BUEs in FCI-1, it now represented amployees assigned to the following divisional/functional activities - Facilities, Safety, and Religious Services in all four institutions, as well as, Correctional Services, Case managers/Counselors/Secretaries, and Psychology Services in FCI-1.
- As for overtime procedures...From year 2000, in accordance with Article 18, Section p, each institution had its own overtime procedures negotiated by the Local representing BUEs in that institution³¹...
 - For FCI-1, Local 3896 had its own procedure with BUEs represented by Local 3696 given first consideration when posting overtime within that institution;
 - For LSCI, Local 405 had its own procedure with BUEs represented by Local 405 given first consideration when posting overtime within that institution;
 - For FMC and FCI-2, Local 408 had its own procedure with BUEs represented by Local 408 given first consideration when posting overtime in those institutions.
 - Since each Local represented BUEs within a specific institution, its BUEs were given first consideration when posting overtime within that institution or involving immates from that institution.
- On January 12, 2009, AFGE Local 405 filed a formal grievance concerning a change of policylpast practice relating to the qualifications of EUEs for overtime...Specifically, a new

policy that BUEs may not consider themselves as qualified for overtime if the available overtime shift overlaps their regular shift.⁷⁶

- On or about April 19, 2010, a Settlement Agreement was executed between Local 405 and Bulner FCC relating to payment for overtime.⁷⁹
- On September 17, 2010, Local 405 files a second formal grievance concerning a change or policy/past practice relating to estimation of allowing BUEs to work overtime that conflicts and/or overlaps with their primary shift.⁵⁰
- Local 408's first <u>formal MOU</u> addressing overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program was executed on November 4, 2010, for FMC and FCI-2 BUEs.³¹
- August 10, 2011, proposal made by three Locals 405, 406, and 3666 which the Unions maintain complied with MA, Article 18, Section p1, to ensure that each Local received overtime on the inmates requiring medical/outside medical from the institutions that they represent.⁵²
- During the period October 26, 2011, through March 5, 2012, Local 408 is in negotiations with Buther FCC on the issue of overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the correctional services roster program. Agreement was reached and Local 408 President and the FCC Complex Warden signed a MOU.
- March 12, 2012, LSCI and FCI-1 Warden calls Locale 405, 408 and 3696 to start negotiations on a MOU for a One Complex Computerized Overtime Program.⁵⁰
- May 2, 2012, Locals meet with management to continue negotiation on overtime proposal...Local 408 was told the Wardens of LSCI/FCI-1 would sign the Local 408 MOU.
- On March 16, 2012, during the regotiations meeting on the One Complex Computerized Overtime Program Local 408 was told Warden of LSCI/FCI-1 would not sign the Local 408 MOU and was "taking it off the table."
- On March 18, 2012, Local 406 files the first ULP.⁸⁴
- On May 17 and June 2, 2012, meetings continued with management and three Locals on the One Complex overtime procedures.
- July 23, 2012, management and three Locals decide to request mediation.
- October 11, 2012, mediation held no agreement reached.
- February 25, 2013, with assistance of FLRA, Settlement Agreement reached between Local 408 and Buther FCC and Local 408's MOU on hospital overtime procedures signed/executed.⁸⁵
- On March 15, 2013, Local 408 received email from Butner management providing that the Agency wanted to reopen negotiations on One Complex Overtime.
- On April 12, 2013, Local 408 receives email from Butner management that Agency wanted to reschedule One Complex overtime negotiations to April 22, 2013.
- On May 1, 2013, Local 408 receives email from Butner management that Agency wanted to reschedule One Complex overlasse negotiations to May 6, 2013.

- On June 18, 2013, Local 408 sends email to Butner management providing that Local 408 stready has a MQU.⁸⁸
- On July, 2, 2013, Busher management signs three-perty MOU with Locals 405 and 3696 on One Complex overtime procedures.⁵⁷
- On July 3, 2013, Warden replies to Local 408's June 18 email notifying Local 408 that the February 25, 2013; MOU agreed upon with FLRA approval was inteffective and invalid.
- On July 25, 2013, Local 408 files the second ULP for republication of agreement.⁴⁶
- On August 11, 2013, FCC Butner began new Complex-wide Hospital Overtime Hiring Procedures.
- On August 13, 2013, Local 408 attempts informal resolution process.⁴⁰
- On August 15, 2013, FCC management identifies problem with new Complex-wide program.⁵⁰
- On September 11, 2013, Local 409 files subject formal grievance.⁹¹
- On September 20, 2013, Agency provides final response to Local 406's formal grievance,³²
- On September 25, 2013, Local 408 notifies Agency of intent to arbitrate.⁹³
- On January 10, 2014, the FLRA responded to/closed Local 408's second ULP, number WA-CA-19-0836.⁶⁴
- Between August 28, 2013, and July 8, 2015, Local 408 has raised the issue of the outside hospital overtime procedures/Correctional Services Roster Program and/or skipped overtime issue up at the FCC LMR meetings over eighteen times and each time it has either been tabled or not fully addressed.³⁰
- On April 15, 2014, FCC Buther management separated the FMC and FCI-2 roeters which for two weeks intringed on Local 408's right to sign up for overtime; no one from the FMC could sign up on the FCI-2 roster and FCI-2 staff could not sign up on the FMC roster.
- On May 19, 2014, the FLRA decision on grievance filed by Local 465 on January 9, 2012, concerning a change of policy/past practice relating to the qualifications of BUEs for overtime... Specifically, a new policy that BUEs may not consider themselves as qualified for overtime if the available overtime shift overlape their regular shift.⁸⁶

Both the Agency and the Union, in their post-hearing briefs, remind the Arbitrator that Article 32, Section h, of their MA provides, in part, "The Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, etter, ar modify any of the terms of: (1) this Agreement; or (2) published Federal Bureau of Prisons policies and regulations" - Then proceed to ask him to accept something that is not clearly addressed in the parties' MA. The Agency, aska considerations and acceptance of threshold issues that the Union maintains are never mentioned in the MA. And, the Union aska consideration and acceptance of its claim that timeliness of the grievance should be accepted because it was 8 continual violation, while the Agency points out that the MA makes no mention of continuing violations.

This Arbitrator is well eware of the guidance provided in Elkouri 8 Elkouri, that he is confined to interpretation and application of the parties' egreement; does not sit to dispense his own brand of industrial justice; but, may of course look for guidance from many sources, as long as, his decision and award draws its essence from the parties' agreement.⁹⁷

What is meant by wording in a contract inevitably depends on its context... A word changes meaning when it becomes part of a sentence, the sentence when it becomes part of a personaph, the personaph when it becomes part of a personaph, the personaph when it becomes

part of a large section of text...Where the whole can be read to give significance to each part, that reading is preferred....⁹⁰ It is a fundamental principle of contract interpretation that a collective bergaining agreement is not to be classiciled, instead, the whole and every part must be considered in the determination of the meaning of any of the integral parts....⁹⁰ Nevertheless, the ultimate responsibility of this, or any Arbitrator in the interpretative process, is to rely on his background, experience, expertise in the labor-management process, giving due regard to the relationship of the parties and their presentations so as to provide as practical and realistic an interpretation as possible under the given agreement.³⁰⁰

A. Regarding the Agency's threshold challenges...

As, explained above, the issue to be decided first is:

is the subject grievance barred by a previously filed ULP and/or procedurally flewed and, therefore, not arbitrable? If, not

Citing AFGE, Local 1411 v. FLRA, 980 F.2d. 176 (1992), which held that a grievance is barred by 5 USC §7116(d) when (1) the same issue is the subject of the grievance and of the ULP charge, (2) that issue was raised in a prior ULP charge, and (3) the decision to file the ULP charge was within the discribin of the approved party; and, offing international Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, Lodge 39 and U.S. Department of the Nawy, Nawal Aviation Depot, Norfolk, VA 44 FLRA 1281 (1992), which held that an issue is raised within the meaning of section 7116(d) of the Statute at the time of the filing of the grievance or a ULP charge, even if the grievance or ULP charge is not adjudicated on the merits; as, its first threshold questions, the Agency argues that the subject grievance is barred bacause "the Union initially filed an unfair labor practice over the same issue." According to the Agency...

- "On July 25, 2013, the Union submitted a ULP charge against the agency which <u>claimed that</u> ins agency's use of a new MOU on overtime procedures was improper;
- the issue in the ULP is in <u>direct relation to the issue in the union's written originance</u> and edvanced in the arbitration hearing; and
- the gravance was <u>fled on September 11, 2013, some two months after the ULP was filed.</u>" [Emphasis added] Therefore.
- based on FLRA case law, the priovance is barred by the initial ULP charge and must be diemiseed.

In response, citing DHHS and AFGE, Local 1888 56 FLRA 83 (2000), the Union points out, in determining whether a grievance and a ULP charge involves the same issue, the Authority examines whether the ULP charge and the grievance group from the same set of factual circumstances and whether the team theories advanced in support of the ULP charge and the prievance are substantially similar. Then, citing other FLRA rulings that the issue is not practicated by Section 7118(d) where the least theories involved in the prievance and the ULP charge and the same; the Union argues that neither the ULP filed by Local 408 on May 18, 2012, nor the ULP filed on July 25, 2013, alleged a contract violation. Therefore, since both ULPs filed by Local 408 alleged statutory violations, while the subject grievance alleged a contract violation, the ULPs and grievance involved different legal theories and are not barred.

The record shows that from October 26, 2011, is March 5, 2012, Local 408 and FCC management were involved in regotiations relating to the issue of overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Service's Reeter progress; and, on March 5, 2012, effor reaching agreement Local 406's President and the FCC Butner Complex Warden signed a MOU. Subsequently, the Warden of one of the institutions within the Complex called for all three Locals at FCC Butner, Local 3666, 405, and 408, to begin negotilations on a complex-wide computarized overtime hiring program. Heving been assured by the Complex Warden that all the other institution Wardens would eigh Local 408's MOU, and that the MOU was in effect, Local 408 reluctantly participated in the complex-wide regotilations. Then, after questioning why the other institution Wardens had not signed Local 408's MOU, but the institution Wardens decided to "take Local 408's MOU off the table." With this action by FCC management, Local 408 filed the first ULP, charge number WA-CA-12-0513, on May 18, 2012, alleging that the Agency violated 5 USC §7116(a)(1, 2, 4, and 8) and was bergalning in bed taith. PMCS Case #14-50738-0. U.S. Department of Junitice, Federal Bureau of Priegne, Federal Connectional Complex, Science, North Caroline and the AFGE, AFL-CID, Councy of Prison Locals #33, Local 438 and Mr. Anthony Little continueds.

The record shows that the circumstances leading to the second ULP charge, number WA-CA-13-0638, filed on July 25, 2013, were - After the filing of the first ULP, Local 408 and FCC Bulner management had, with the encouragement and approval of FLRA, on February 25, 2013, associated a Settlement Apreement, as well as the previously neootisted and partially executed MOU that was the basis for the first ULP, and FLRA dismissed the charge. Then within a few months, the same institution Warden who had, prior to the first ULP tabled Local 408's MOU and refused to sign off on it, again called for negotiations on a complex-wide overtime hiring program. Local 408 refused to participate in the reconvened negotiations for a complex-wide overtime hiring program because it had just executed its own MOU with FCC management on February 25, 2013. On July 2, 2013, FCC management (the Complex/FMC Warden and Wardens of FCI-1, FCI-2, and the LSCI) executed a new MOU for a complex-wide overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctionel Services Roster program with the two other Locals, numbers 405 and 3696.¹⁰¹ That same day, Local 406 was told that it's MOU, the one just executed on February 25, 2013, as part of the FLRA approved Sattlement Agreement whereby the first ULP was dismissed, was superseded and would no longer be honored. These ections by FCC management predicated the second ULP alleging that the Agency violated 5 USC §7116(a)(1, 5, 7, and 8); the parties' Mester Agreement, Articles 6 and 16; as well as, the Back Pay Act, 5 USC \$5566 - When it repudiated the Settlement Agreement and told Local 408 it's FLRA approved MOU would no longer be honored; signed the new MOU on a complex-wide overtime hiring. program with Locals 3596 and 405; changed the way bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 received overtime, causing bargaining unit employees represented by Eccel 408 to be ekipped over on the overtime sign up sats, and not being allowed to sign up on some rosters.

On January 10, 2014, the FLRA responded to/closed Local 408's second ULP finding thet:

- whether the Agency repudiated the Settlement Agreement it approved on February 25, 2013, depended on whether the Agency republiced the underlying March 2012 MOU;
- the Agency's conduct regarding the March 2012 MOU did not amount to repudiation, because the alleged breach of the March 2012 MOU was not clear and patent...(explaining);
- the March 2012 MOU provided, among other things, that "<u>any new negotiations concerning</u> the procedures for overtime will review the procedures listed here and be incorporated for negotiation in the new negotiations..."[and];
- this lancuage is capable of more than one interpretation... [and];
- questions of interpretation are for an arbitrator, not the FLRA... [but noting];
- a reasonable interpretation, though not necessarily the only reasonable interpretation, is that the March 2012 MOU contemplated further negotiations about overtime procedures. [and]
- the Agency did subsequently initiate bargaining on new overtime procedures, resulting in a complex-wide egreement...(and, any);
- interpretation of the complex-wide acreement, and its relationship to the March 2012 MOU, are matters for an arbitrator...(accordingly);
- under these circumstances, FLRA's Washington Regional Director determined that the Agency's conduct did not clearly and patently breach the March 2012 MOU, and dismissed the charge.

While, both the ULPs and the subject grievance clearly relate to the issue of overtime hiring procedures and the utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program; as well as, the Local 408 MOU negotisted during the period October 26, 2011, to March 5, 2012, and partially executed in March 2012 - the Arbitration have determined that the factual circumstances, issues, and least theories of the ULP(s) and orievance differ significantly.

As for the factual circumstances and issues...

The factual circumstance, issue or issues in the two ULP's and the subject grievance, as clarified by the Arbitrator's examination of the total record were, and/or are:

FMCS Case \$14-50735-9, U.S. Department of Justice. Federal Burney of Privare, Rederal Correctional Complex. Subser, North Caroline and the AFGE, AFL-CHO, Council of Privan Locale \$33, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Little southound:

- In the first ULP, charge number WA-CA-12-0513, which was filed acainst the Agency and FCC management as a whole, the issue was that FCC management showed bad fails in its barcaining with Local 408; and, the circumstances leading to the completit ware, when it refused to hely execute Local 408's MOU on overtime hims procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program after agreement had been reached and the Complex Warten had some of on the MOU, assured Local 408 that its MOU was in effect, there allowed one of the Institution Wartens to singularly decide to take Local 408's MOU off the table and refuse to sign off on it.
- In the second ULP, charge number WA-CA-13-0636, size <u>filed against the Agency and ECC</u> management as a whole, the issue was that ECC management recursisted the Saftement <u>Agreement</u>; and the circumstances leading to the completing wars, when it told Local 438 #'s ELRA approved MOU would no longer be honored, signed the new MOU on a complex-relate overtime thing program with Local 3696 and 405; and, cherned the way bergeining units employees represented by Local 408 received overtime, causing particulation and relations to be akinged over on the overtime sign up lists, and rol being allowed to sign up on some resters.
- And, in the subject grievance, filed specifically adainst the Complex Werden, the instance are that the Complex Warden violated Local 405's overtime intitu procedures and the utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program; and the circumstances leading to the utilization ware, when he directed that the new complex-wide overtime hitting procedures and the utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program; and the circumstances leading to the difference ware, when he directed that the new complex-wide overtime hitting procedures and the utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program, provided for in the MOU executed on July 2, 2013, with only two of the three AFGE Locals at FCC Butner, was to go operational on August 11, 2013; thereby, causing bargshing unit employees represented by Local 406 to be aktobed over on the overtime sign up lists, and not being allowed to sign up on some 1984/45.

The legal theories advanced in the two ULP's and the subject grisvance, as clarified by the Arbitrator's examination of the total record were, and/or are:

- In the first ULP, that the Agency, through the actions of FCC management as a whole, showed bad faith in its bargaining with Local 408; thereby, violating specific statutory provisions, 5 USC §7116(s)(1, 2, 4, and 8).
- In the second ULP, that the Agency, through the actions of FCC management as a whole, repudiated and violated the FLRA approved Settlement Agreement and MOU executed by FCC management and Local 408; thereby, violating specific statutory provisions, 5 USC §7116(a)(1, 5, 7, and 8).
- And, in the subject grievance, that the Complex Warden violated a contract, the parties' Master Agreement, including Sections 6 and 18, when he directed a new overtime hiring procedure to go operational; which caused bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 to suffer an adverse action in violation of government-wide Federal procedures; as well as, a different statute, the Back Pay Act, 5 USC 5596.

While a superficial reading of the two ULPs and the subject grisvance might lead one to conclude all three actions rose from the same set of circumstances, involved the same laaues, and legal theories; the Arbitrator has determined that his more thorough examination of all the factors and parties' actions prior to each complaint shows otherwise.

As to the Agency's threshold argument that the subject grievance is barred by \$ USC §7116(d) the Arbitrator finds the:

 factual circumstances giving rise to each of the two ULPs and the subject grievance are notably different;

- principal issue(s) raised in each of the two ULPs and the subject grievance are notably different; and
- legal theories advanced in each of the two ULPs and the subject griavance are markedly different.¹⁴¹ Therefore, the
- subject grievance is not barred by 8 USC §7116(d).

Next the Agency argues that the subject grievance is procedurally defective because it was not filed in a timely manner. Pointing out that the parties' Master Agreement, Article 31, Section d, clearly provides that... "Grievances must be filed within forty (40) calendar days of the date of the alleged grievable occurrence..." (Emphasis added); the Agency argues "Since the Union had awareness of an alleged violation occurring on July 3, 2013, then they had 40 days to file their grievance, which would have expired on August 12, 2013. However, they did not file their grievance until September 11, 2013, or 30 days late."

Here, the Agency writes that the courts have held that "A knowing plaintiff has an obligation to file promptly or lose his claim..."¹⁰⁹ and that Elkouri & Elkouri provides, among other things, "If the language of an agreement is clear and unequivocal, an arbitrator generally will not give it a meaning other than that expressed...[Ihat] Arbitrators apply the principle that parties to a contract with full knowledge of its provisions and the significance of its language...expect the parties to pay due respect to the grievance procedures, not only by using it, but also by observing its formal requirements." To further support its argument, this Agency, cites eleven arbitration decisions/awards involving the BOP and application of its MA.¹⁰⁴

The Union, however, maintains that the July 3, 2013, memorandum from Complex Warden Apker, only gave notice of his intent to implement the new overtime procedures on August 11, 2013. Therefore, the Union had to wait to see; first if the new procedures were actually implemented, then to identify the impact their implementation had on BUE's represented by Local 408. The Union filed the subject grievance on September 11, 2013, thirty-two (32) calendar days after the new policies were scheduled to be implementation of the new procedures was not working property.¹⁰⁵ Therefore, it wasn't until later in the month of August when the new system was sufficiently uperational, that the Union became fully aware of the new procedure's impact on its BUEs. As already noted, the subject grievance was filed on September 11, 2013, thirty-two (32) calendar days after the new policies were scheduled to be implementation of the new procedures was not working property.¹⁰⁵ Therefore, it wasn't until later in the month of August when the new system was sufficiently uperational, that the Union became fully aware of the new procedure's impact on its BUEs. As already noted, the subject grievance was filed on September 11, 2013, thirty-two (32) calendar days after the new policies were scheduled to be implemented, and well within the forty calendar days prescribed in Article 31 (d) of the MA. However, the Union contends, since the impact of the change in procedures on BUEs was not fully appreciated until falls in August, it could have wated until later in September to file the grisvance and still have been timely.

Furthermore, the grievance, as filed, clearly provides that "[b]argeining unit staff are being akipped on the overtime sign up list daily" and on "8/20/13 Local 406 Bargaining Unit Staff were not allowed to sign up on the FCI-1/Low overtime roster." Therefore, the Union maintains there is a continuing nature to the violation because "every day since August 12, 2013, the Agency has been violating the MA and depriving BUEs represented by Local 408 of first consideration." Moreover, on the grievance form, the Union specifically provided that the violation was taking place daily. Thus, according to the Union, since the violations are repeated continuously, and still occurring as of the date of its post-hearing brief, then it follows that it is a continuing violation.

Finally, the Union notes that the Agency, in its reply to the subject grievance, failed to argue that the grievance was unlimely filed. In fact, the Union claims the timeliness issue was not raised, even as a threshold issue, until the administrative conference. Moreover, the Union also points out that the Arbitrator afforded the parties the opportunity to file pre-hearing briefs; and, while the Union took advantage of this offer, the Agency failed to submit any pre-hearing brief or other documentation raising any threshold issues, much less the lasue of timeless.

Accordingly, the Union argues that the Agency's threshold issue regarding the alleged untimalinees of the grievence should be dismissed.

While the Agency's arguments on timeliness highlights, the first part of Article 31, Section d, the Arbitrator believes that it is the wording later in Section d, that needs to be considered, specifically,

"...If a party becomes eware of an alleged grievable event more than forty (40) calendar days after its occurrence, the <u>grievance must be filed within forty (40) calendar days from the dete</u> the party filing the grievance can reasonably be expected to have become sware of the <u>occurrence</u>. A grievance can be filed for violations within the life of this contract, however, where the atstutes provide for a longer filing period, then the statutory period would control." [Emphasis added]

The Agency's argument that the forty calendar-day period during which the Union should have filed its grievance commanced on July 3, 2013, because the Union "became awars of an alleged violation" an that date totally ignores the reason and essence of the communication received by the Union on that date. The Complex Warden's July 3, 2013, memorandum was sent to Local 408's President to:

- remind him that:
 - "s meeting was held on July 1, 2013, in which Local 408 was invited but dealined to attend"; and,
- inform him that:
 - during the July 1st meeting the [attending] "parties discussed the agency's counter proposal for Complex overtime procedures and came to an agreement on a Memorandum of Understanding that [the parties thought was] in line with the Master Agreement";
 - the "agreement was prepared and signed by Local 405 and Local 3596";
 - he was "encouraged to [also] sign [the egreement];
 - the "agreement [would] take effect August 11, 2013"; and
 - the "February Memorandum of Understanding (executed by FCC Butner and Local 408, with FLRA approval, was) ineffective and (would) no longer be honored."

The Union's counter argument that the orievable matter of concern --

- wee not FCC Buther management's decision to push forward for an agreement an a complex-wide overtime hitring procedure, or its resulting approval of an agreement and speculion of a new MOU with only two of the three AFGE Locals being a party; but.
- was the Complex Warden's declaration that the FCC MOU with Local 408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored, <u>coupled with his decision and direction</u> that the new MOU and the complex-wide overtime procedures that MOU established <u>would go contrational on</u> <u>August 11, 2013</u>; and that the Union <u>wanted to well to see what impact the Complex-Warden's decision and direction that the new complex-wide overtime procedures would go into effect on August 11, 2013, would have on BUEs represented by Local 408.
 </u>

As to the Agency's threshold argument that the subject grievance is procedurally deficient because it was not filed in a timely memory, the Arbitrator finds that the:

 date the grievable action occurred was August 11, 2013, the date the Complex Wardsh set for the NOU executed with Local 406 and Local 3806 and its new complex-wide overtime hiring procedures would go into effect; therefore, the Union heat to file the subject grievance within forty calendar-days from August 11, 2013;

 subject prievance was filed in a timely manner, in accordance with the parties' MA, Article 31, Section d; and therefore, FMCS Case #14-80735-0, U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Survey of Prisone, Federal Convoluted Complex, Butter, Naris Carolina and the APGE, AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locale #33, Local 408 and Mr. Astrony Little continued:

7. Agency's threshold argument that the grievance was untimely is without merit.

The Agency's third and lest threshold challenge is that the subject prievance was filed with the wrong office. Here again the Agency points out that the MA, Article 31, Section f 1, specifically provides:

"...when filling a grievance, the grievance will be filed with the Chief Executive Officer of the institution/facility, if the grievance pertains to the action of an individual for which the Chief Executive Officer of the institution/facility has disciplinary authority over...."

Here the Agency focuses on that part of the grievance regarding BUEs represented by the Union having been skipped over when assigning overtime and/or not allowed to sign-up on overtime sign-up sheets. Then, oiling testimony from the Complex Human Resources Manager that the Complex Warden is the Chief Executive Officer of FCC Buther; that the scheduling and hiring of overtime is done by the Complexes' Lieutenants and Captains; and, that the Complex Warden has disciplinary authority over the subordinate managers at FCC Buther, which includes the Lieutenants and Captains — The Agency argues — Since the Lieutenants and Captains are the ones assigning overtime, any complaint that BUEs represented by Local 408 were aldoped over in the assignment of overtime and/or not allowed to sign-up on overtime sign-up sheets, must have been filed with the Complex Warden since it pertains to the actions of individuals for which he as the Chief Executive Officer of the institution/facility has disciplinary authority over subordinate managers at FCC Buther. which includes the Lieutenants and Captains.

The Union points out that Article 31, Section f 2, provides, in part:

"...when filling a grievance against the Chief Executive Officer of an institution/facility...the grievance will be filed with the appropriate Regional Director."

Accordingly, the Union argues that the subject griavance was filed against the Complex, Warden for the decisions and actions he made and took that resulted in:

- the MOU executed by FCC Butner and Local 408 with the approval of the FLRA being ignored and not honored;
- a new MOU executed with only two of the three AFGE Locals at Butner used as the mechanism to have a complex-wide overtime hiting procedure established and activated; and
- BUEs represented by Local 408 being adversely affected by being skipped over in the assignment of overtime and/or denied the opportunity to sign up on overtime sign-up sheets.

As to the Agency's threshold argument that the subject grisvance is procedurally deficient because it was filed with the wrong office, the Arbitrator finds that the:

 Union filed the subject grisvance against the FCC Butner Complex Warden for decisions and actions he personally made;

grisvance was filed properly and in accordance with the provisions of the parties' MA, Article 31, Section f 2, with the appropriate Regional Director; and, therefore,

10. Agency's argument that the grievance was filed with the wrong office is without merit.

Before, moving to the marits of the subject grievance, the Arbitrator notes that the parties' pleas at hearing, as well as, in post-hearing submittats included arguments which may not have been mentioned in the summaries of their positions and narratives discussed above. Nevertheless, the Arbitrator has fully considered all the paramount arguments made. If a particular nuance or stant of a parties' argument has not been mentioned in other the summary of the parties' position or nametive presented above it is because the Arbitrator did not find the paint persuasive or that his finding made it moot.

B. Regarding the marite of the subject grievance.

As discussed, analyzed and explained above, the Agency's threshold challenges have been found to have no merit; therefore, the Arbitrator now turns to the merits of the subject prevance. Now, the issue to be reached is:

Did the Agency violate the provieions of Federal isw, regulations, and/or the parties' Meeter Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between it and Local 408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; than, implemented overtime hiring procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 3696; and, in so doing, skipped over bergaining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was offered and assigned; thereby, adversely affecting bergaining unit employees represented by Local 406? If so, what should the remedy be?

As the Agency points out, the Union brought forth the allegations in the subject grisvance, so the burden of persuasion is on them. However, the burden of producing evidence in rebuttal is on the Agency.¹⁰⁷. Both parties? position on the ments of this case are summarized and presented above and need not be re-stated here. It is sufficient to note only that...

Local 408 strongly argues that:

- It represents a specific identifiable group of BUEs, just like the other Union Locals;
- the Agency has historically recognized this Local Union representation of institutional/facility staff;
- for years each Local negotiated and administered its own MOU on overtime hiring procedures, which were seen as in compliance with Article 18, Section p 1;
- the procedures by which the BUEs represented by Local 406 are to receive overtime assignments were spalled out in the MOU it signed with FCC Busher management, with the approval of FLRA, on February 25, 2013;¹⁰⁷ and
- the actions by the Complex Warden on August 11, 2013, to establish a complex-wide overtime hiring procedure through execution of the new MOU with only two of the three Locals at Buther, set aside and not honor Local 408's MOU, and order the use of the newly established procedures have caused BUEs to be adversely effected and suffer monitary lost by being skipped over in the assignment of eventime.

The Agency, just as strongly disagrees, arguing that:

- all bergeining unit employees at FCC Buther are covered by the parties' Mester Agreement;
- the Master Agreement Identifies the Union and exclusive representative as the Council of Prison Locals;
- the duty to bergain resides only at the level of the exclusive representative;

- It is sole dispute in the case comes down to the provisions of Article 18, Section p 1; and
- the term "employees in the bargaining unit," as used in Section p 1, refers to "all bargaining unit employees not those represented by a particular local."

With regard to the arguments that: the Union, Local 408, does or doesn't represent a specific group of bargaining unit employees; the duty to bargain resides only at the level of the exclusive representative; and whether or not the Agency has historically recognized and accepted the Local Union role and applicability of singularly negotiated. MOUs --

A review of the key provisions of the parties' agreement^{top} clearly shows that:

- AFGE and the Council of Prison Locals are the recognized exclusive representative of all BUEs in the Bureau. However, the record shows, and careful reading of the MA reveals, that functionally the Council's duty relates only to the negotiation of the Master Agreement and handling Bureau-wide and multi-institution issues and grievances. And,
- Starting with the Preamble, the MA envisions, directs and/or aligws representation and negotiation at the institutionalifacility level through AFGE Locals¹¹⁰. As is noted above -Article 2 of the MA, dealing with "Joint Labor Management Relations" provides in Section f that "The parties at the national level endorse the concept of regular labor menagement. meetings at the local level ... (and that 3... The actual propedures for local labor menagement meetings will be negotiated locally." In Article 3, dealing with "Governing Regulations" the MA provides in Section # 1, "...local supplemental agreements will take precedence over any Agency issuance derived or generated at the local level"... [and] in Section d 5, "...when locally proposed policy issuances are made, the local Union President will be notified...and the manner in which local repotiations are conducted will parellel this article." And, Article 18, Section p. begins with "Specific procedures recercting overtime assignments may be negotiated locally." in fact, the term "local negotiation and/or local negotiations' is mentioned some eleven times in the MA; the term "Local President and/or Local Union President" is mentioned some fourteen times: and the term "Local supplemental agreement(s)" is mentioned some five times. Ground rules for local negotiation of supplemental agreements are even presented as an appendix to the MA. And,
- Article 9 of the MA, which is titled "Negotistions at the Local Level" shows the parties" fully anticipated and planned for AFGE Locals and institutional/tacility menanament to regeliate and execute binding contracts. While some of the MA's provisions providing for Local negotiation are permissive, that is provide that the subject may be negotiated: several provisions are not permissive, and require neocliation of the matter at the local institutional level, i.e., Article 2, Section f, which provides "The actual procedures for local labor management meetings will be negotiated locally." Furthermore, the MA provides for two different types of local egreements, the memorandum of understanding (MOU) and local supplementary agreements (LSAs); and in Article 9 fully describes the procedures for negatieting and executing LSAs. LSAs can be initially negotiated only during a specific period after the execution of the MA. They can address multiple provisions and/or issues; in fact, the MA allows Local parties to include any metter in the LSA which does not specifically conflict with Article 9 and the MA. And the MA provides that only one LSA may be neoptiated at each institution/facility. However, LSAs are not binding on the Union unless ratified by the Local's membership. LSAs expire upon the same date as the Master Agreement and, if the MA's life is extanded beyond the exhectuled expiration date for any reason, local supplemental agreements are also extended. MOUs, on the other hand, do not have to be executed in the same detailed menner as LSAs; can be negotiated and executed at any time during the life of the MA and do not have to be ratified by the Local's membership (but as a matter of course, usually are brought up to the Local's membarship); usually address one particular matter or issue; but otherwise are considered similar to LSAs. With mutual agreement of the parties, both LSAs and MOUs can be amended or modified in the

same manner as the MA. MOUs, like LSAs expire when the supporting Master Agreement expires. And,

The Master Agreement clearly provides that "This Agreement and such supplementary
agreements and memorandums of understanding by both parties as may be agreed
upon hereunder from time to time, together constitute a collective agreement between
the Agency and the Union."

As to the role and characterization of Local 408 – While neither the Agency nor the Union, at hearing or in submittale, clearly and distinctly described and characterized the Union's full recognition; the Arbitrator, therefore, characterizes and understands that recognition as – The American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals (normally referred to simply as AFGE), is the exclusive representative of a nationwide consolidated bargelining unit of employees of the Federal Bureau of Prisons and the American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Council of Prison to simply as AFGE), is the exclusive representative of a nationwide consolidated bargelining unit of employees of the Federal Bureau of Prisons and the American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Council of Prison Locals, Local 408 (or any other of the BOP Locals, normally referred to simply as the Union) is an agent and affiliate of AFGE for the purpose of neoreecting bargelining unit employees at the institutional/facility level, i.e., Butner FOC.³¹

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

11. the Agency's argument that Local 408 does not "represent" a specific group of bargaining unit employees is without medit. The parties' MA clearly establishes a specific role for the AFGE Locats operating as the Union's agent and affiltute responsible for representing a specific group of BUEs, that is the employees within the institution/facility, the Local is charged with representing. The MA also, provides in Article 7, Section is, that "[T]he Union and the Employer recognize the role of the Union at the local level."

Here the Arbitrator notes the Agency's contention that "a key problem with the subject case is that the Union, AFGE, has established three different locals at the Buiner Complex..... It is the Arbitrator's opinion that the parties, when they negotiated the Master Agreement(s), clearly understood that the Locals, as an egent and affiliate of AFGE for the purpose of representing bargaining unit employees at the institutional/facility level, play an important role in the over-all labor-management relationship. This relationship, as provided for in the MA, also clearly is centered on the AFGE Local representing BUEs "within the individual institution/facility." The problem isn't that AFGE established three different Locals at Buther - each Local historically has an "institutional relationship and responsibility" (e.g., Local 408's responsibility for representation of BUEs in the FMC and FCI-2: Local 3586's responsibility for BUEs in FCI-1, and Local 406's responsibility for LSCI). The problem is the development and establishment of the Complex structure. With the development of the Complex is the historic institutional/lacility relationship still with the individual institutions/facilities that make up a Complex or is it now only with the Complex. While the Locals at Buther sought to address the centralization of departmenta/functions lhose actions did not address the over-arching issue of the establishment of the Complex itself.

12. the Agency's argument that the duty to bargain resides only at the level of the exclusive representative is without ment. While, the Arbitrator acknowledges the Agency clied and included the caveet "absent an agreement between the parties providing for local negotiations or other delegation of authority" in its brief; still the argument stressed the negative and de-emphasized the caveat. It was clear to the Arbitrator that the Agency wanted a ruling negating local bargaining.

13. the parties' Master Agreement clearly recognizes and accepts the Local Union role and applicability of singularly negotiated MOUs. Furthermore, Buther FCC management and the three AFGE Locals representing BUEs, working in specific Buther Institutions, Local 3896 representing FCI-1, Local 405 representing the LSCI, and Local 408 representing FCI-2 and the FMC, have a history of negotiating, executing, and operating in accordance with singularly negotiated MOUs, including those accepted as complying with the requirements of Article 18, Section p. providing overtime hiring procedures calling for "first consideration of Local BUEs"; and, that this more than fifteen year history of mutual acceptance and use of such MOUs constitutes an aslabilished pattern of behavior involving a "condition of employment" qualifying as a past-practice.¹¹²

As to the provisions of Anticle 18, Section p...

The record shows that, at Butner, management has over the years recognized and accepted the role of the AFGE Locals, 3896, 405, and 406 as labor-management partners, negotiating various MOUs, including MOUs addressing overtime hiring procedures within the individual institutions represented by each Local. This history of years of operating within Locally negotiated, singularly applicable MOU's providing unique overtime, hiring procedures within the individual Local represented a specific group of BUEs (i.e., the MOU regotiated in 2010 between Local 406 and FCC Butner providing overtime hiring procedures for PCI-2 and FMC; and similar MOUs with Local 405 and 3696 providing for overtime hiring procedures for BUEs (hey represented within FCI-1 and LSCI); all seen and accepted as being in compliance with Article 18, Section p 1; clearly establish a past-practice of such behavior, which cannot know be disclaimed.¹¹³

Accordingly, based on the prepanderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

14. the Agency's argument that "employees in the bargelining unit," as used in Section p: 1, refers to "all bargelining unit employees not those represented by a particular local;" is without merit. The record shows that Article 18, Section p, begins with the phrase "Specific procedures regarding overtime assignments may be negotiated locally;" and that, historically, Buther management has accepted and operated within the confines of Locally negotiated MOUs providing for overtime hiring procedures applicable to each separate institution for BUEs represented by each individual Local, all heating been seen and understood as complying with the provisions of Article 18, Section p; including the understanding that the individual Local represented a specific group of BUEs and their MOU provided for "first consideration of that group of BUEs for overtime assignments within the institution or involving immites in the institution represented by that Local." Management cannot now claim the term bargelining unit employees as used in Section p applies to all bargelining unit employees not to a singular group of BUEs employed in an individual institution represented by an individual Local.

Here the Arbitrator notes the Agenta's position that "an arbitrator has eiterativ defined Article 18, Section p's provision for FCC Butter." To support its position the Agency cites two agecific cases - Federal Bureau of Prisons and AFGE, Local 33, FMCS Case No. 05-01919 decided September 6, 2008, by Arbitrator Christopher Honeyman and DOJ, FBOP, FCC Butner and AFGE, Local 405, FMCS Case No. 11-51176 decided July 28, 2012, by Arbitrator J. Wood AFGE, Council of Prison Locals, Local 405 and U.S. DOJ, FSOP, FCC Bullion 67 FLRA 108 (2014). Here the Agency misreads both cited decisions. Honeyman did not address the question of whether the term "bargaining unit employee" as used in Article 18, Section p 1, means all BUEs throughout the Bureau of BUEs as represented by an AFGE Local at the institutional/facility level; it addressed the applicability of 5 CFR 551.432 and the proper pay for employees on temporary duty, including der diem pay, finding against the Agency. As for Arbitrator Wood's decision, while she did have to concern herself with the provision of Article 18, Section p1, her findings, again did not address the question of whether the term "bargaining unit employee" as used in Article 16, Section p 1, means all BUEs throughout the Bureau of BUEs as represented by an AFGE Local at the institutional/facility level; her decision was centered an dispersite treatment of BUEs and those represented by Local 405 being singled out and treated differently than SUEs represented by Locals 3666 and 408. Again she found against the Agency finding that it did hal assign and rotate oversime among qualified employees in the bargeming unit in an equitable menner and ordered back pay. Furthermore, as the FLRA noted, the Agency never argued to the Arbitrator that the equitable-distribution provision requires equitable distribution of overtime across only a given local's jurisdiction, even though it elicited testimony during the hearing that appears to have been intended to support this very argument.

Turning to the first part of the issue in question - Did the Agency violate the provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties' Master Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorenoum of understanding (MOU) PMC6 Case #14-80738-8, U.B. Department of Austine, Federal Bureau of Prisone, Federal Corrections: Campies, Butter, North Cambing and the AFGE, AFL-CiO, Council of Prison Locale #25, Local 405 and Mr. Anthony Little continued:

between it and Local 408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overtime hiring procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 36967

The record shows that during the period October 26, 2011, through March 5, 2012, AFGE Local 408 and FCC management conducted negotiations on the issue of overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program for BUEs represented by Local 408 in FCI-2 and the FMC. Agreement was reached and on March 5, 2012, Local 408's President and the FCC Complex Warden signed the "Local specific" MOU. Subsequently, institutional level management called for negotiations on a complex-wide overtime hiring procedure and, along with Loosia 3596 and 405, Local 408 perticipated in these negotiations - During which the same institutional level manager(s) refused to sign the Local 408 MOU and announced it was "taken off the table"; which resulted in Local 408 filing a ULP. Then, on February 25, 2013, with the assistance, involvement, and approval of the FLRA, FCC Buther management and Local 408 executed the March 5, 2012, MOU, together with a settlement agreement and FLRA dismissed the ULP. Shortly thereafter, the same institutional level menager who fridally called for regoliations on a complex-wide overtime hiring procedure, tabled and refused to sign Local 409's NOU prior to the February 25, 2013, settlement eareement; again called for negotiations on a complex-wide overtime hims procedure. This time Local 408 refused to participate in the negotiations on the complex-wide overtime hiring procedure; and an July 3, 2013, the Complex Warden notified Local 408 that the MOU executed on Fabruary 25, 2013, with the approval of FLRA, was ineffective, invalid, and would no longer be honored. The Complex Warden also intermed Local 408 that a MOU had been signed with Locals 3896 and 405 on a complex-wide overtime trying procedure which would go into effect August 11, 2013. Shortly, thereafter, on July 25, 2013, Local 408 filed a second ULP stepring that FCC menagement reputilisted and violated the FLRA Settlement Agreement.

The Agency cleims the actions by FCC management regarding the MOU executed with Local 408 on February 25, 2013, ellowed for further negotiations on the overtime hiring procedures and with Local 408's refusal to participate in the further negotiations, management, therefore, was justified in no longer honoring the MOU and antening into the new MOU with Locals 3698 and 405.

Without further comment on FLRA actions and decisions relating to either of the two ULP's filed by Local 408, since I have skeady addressed the two ULPs and found they did not bar the subject grisvance - The Arbitrator does not agree with the Agency's defense.

Based on the Arbitrator's reading of the parties' MA, the Local 408 MOU was negotiated and accepted by the Buther Complex Warden on Merch 5, 2012; as to whether or not that agreement was required to be accepted and signed by the individual institution Wardens is questionable; neverthelese, the agreement was ultimately fully accounted on February 25, 2013. Under the provisions of the parties MA that MOU became part of the "opticative agreement between the Agency and the Union;" and, could only be modified or amended by mutual consent of the parties, much less be found ineffective, invalid, and disregarded by FCC management.

As to the Agency's contention that the February 25, 2013, MOU allowed for new negotiations concerning the procedures for overtime, therefore, management was within its right to proceed as it did, and the Local-408 weived its rights by refusing to participate in the new negotiations; sgain the Arbitrator disagrees.

Again, without commenting on FLRA's reading of the March 2012 MOU, other than noting that Authority found the "language (to be) capable of more than one interpretation;" and, that "Questions of interpretation are far an arbitrator...;" we will now look at the provisions of the March 2012 MOU. Clearly interpretation of the wording in the March 2012 MOU must be based on knowledge of the provisions of the parties' MA; and, an understanding of the history of FCC Butter and its negotiation, execution, and administration of MOU's covering overtime hiring procedures with its three AFGE Locals. Without addressing any other provisions of the March 2012 MOU, other than noting that it is a Local and institutional specific agreement; let's consider what the parties are providing in the section titled "Effects on Other MOUs." That section provides;

"This MOU supersectes all previous MOU's with dealing with Overtime signed by the Agency and Local 408. Any new negotiations concerning the procedure for overtime will review the procedures listed here and be incorporated for negotiation in the new negotiations. Should any issues/concerns arise as a result of this MOU, the Agency and Local 0408 agree to discuss them within seven (7) working days of notification of the issue or concern." [Working corrected]

FMCB Case \$14-60735-8, U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisone, Federal Corrections/ Complex, Butner, North Carolina and the AFGE, AFL-C/O. Dounce of Prison Locale \$25, Local \$08 and Mr. Anthony Liple continued:

This provision can only be interpreted to be addressing matters involving the parties signing the MOU, that is, FCC management and Local 408. It supersedes only MOUs "dealing with Overtime" previously executed by the signing parties, FCC management and Local 408. This provision has absolitely no impact on anything involving parties other then FCC menagement and Local 408. The phrase "Any new nepotiations concerning the procedures for overtime..." concerns only actions involving FCC management and Local 408 - Therefore, since Local 408's representational responsibility is limited to matters concerning BUEs it represents, those working in FCI-2 and FMC, the phrase can only be addressing new neophetions between ECC management and Local 408 "opportuning the procedures for overtime for BUEs and in institutions where Local 405 nes representational responsibility." Should FCC management and Local 408, therefore, open new negotiations concerning procedures for overtime in FCI-2 and/or FMC, or any new institution where Local 408 has assumed representational responsibility; the procedures outlined in the March 2012 MOU are to be reviewed and incorporated into the regotilations for any new agreement being negotiated by FCC management and Local 408. This provision, in no way, is an invitation to neoptiete: nor is it mendating that envone (other than those who are eignature to the 2012 MOU) review the overtime procedures outlined in the March 2012 MOU and incorporate those procedures into the negotiation for any other new overtime procedures that involve any other partice or any other institutions. Therefore, the cited provision was not an invitation to open new negotiations on overtime procedures. Especially since the requirements of the MA mandale that parties to an executed MOU (or LSA) must mutually agree to reopen neopliations on, or emend, the provisions of the executed agreement. Furthermore, the cited provision clearly requires that any questions/concerns that arise reparting the MOU (again those must be issued concerns by/of the signature parties) be discussed.

As to that part of the Agency's argument that Local 408, by refusing to participate in the re-opened complex-wide overtime procedure negotiations, waived any rights - The Arbitrator notes that Local 408 and FCC Butner had already negotiated overtime himg procedures and the use of the Correctional Services Roster program and memorialized their agreement in the MOU signed initially by the then Complex Warden on March 5, 2012, then fully executed on February 25, 2013. Just as the "covered by doctrine" can stretch management from having to negotiate matters already agreed to and covered by a formel agreement, so does the dootrine shield the Union from having to renegotiate matters previously agreed to and covered by a formal agreement. Here, Local 408 had a property executed MOU, which under the provisions of the parties' MA was part of the "collective agreement" between the Agency and the Union; and without mutual agreement, matters covered by that MOU could not be reopened or amended.⁵¹⁴ The Union did not give its consent to reopen the matters.

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

15. the Agency (through the actions of the FCC Sumer Complex Warden, as well as, one or more institutional level Wardens at Butner) violated the provisions of the parties' Master Agreement (MA) when it decided the memorandum of understanding (MOU) between it and Local 408 (identified herein as the March 2012 MOU or MCU executed between FCC management and Local 408 on February 25, 2013) was ineffective and would no longer be honored. As to whether the Agency violated Federal law and/or regulations, that part of the questions will be addressed below.

As to the whether or not the Agency violated Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties' Master Agreement (MA) when it implemented overtims hiring procedures based on a different MOU with Locale 406 and 3696.

The question of whether or not the Agency/FCC Buther management can execute and participate in an agreement between more than one party (AFGE Local) is not before this Arbitrator. Therefore, he renders no opinion or judgement regarding the legality of the Memorandum of Understanding executed July 1 and 2, 2013, between FCC management and Locals 405 and 3696. However, the Arbitrator does observe the following:

 The cited MOU is not in the format observed in other MOUs that are a matter of record in this case. For example the heading of the MOU executed by FCC management and Local 408 on overtime hiring procedures for FCI-2/FMC in 2010 and in 2013 had a heading which clearly provided that the parties were the "Council of Prison Locals, Local 408 (Union) and the Federat Correctional Complex, Sumer, NC (Agency) and clearly identified the subject of the MOU.

- The cited three-perty MOU, while providing in paragraph sumber 1 that "Each institution will
 maintain their current roster program" proceeds to change the provisions of those
 institutional singularit, ocal specific MOU established programs. Here the parties' MA
 provides that local agreements can only be reopened, modified, amended with the mutual
 consent of the originating parties.
- Finally, the record shows if there is to be a multi-party agreement at the institutional/facility level which involves. AFGE Locals that have institutional specific representational responsibilities, that all of the Locals within that structure must agree on euch a multi-party agreement; further, the MA appears to provide that such agreements will not be binding on the Union unless ratified by the membership.

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the svidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

16, the Agency [through the actions of the FCC Buther Complex Warden, as well as, one or more institutional level Wardens at Buther] violated the provisions of the partias' Master Agroement (MA) when it implemented overtime biring procedures based on a different NOU with Locals 405 and 3698.

Now turning to the last part of the issue - "and, in so doing, skipped over bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was offered and assigned; thereby, adversally affecting bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408."

As outlined and discussed above, the Union reviewed data from overtime sign-up lists, prior to and after the combined rooter was implemented and the overtime hiring procedure changed, to determine the effect on SUEs represented by Local 408. That review looked at a sampling of overtime assigned/worked during eleven (11) pay periods from August 2013 through June 2015. The review found many instances where BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped in the assignment of overtime; some of which occurred on numerous occasions and in various scenarice. Specifically, the review noted that:

- Every time that a BUE not represented by Local 406 was assigned/worked avertime within institutions/departments/posts represented by Local 408, a BUE represented by Local 408 had been skipped over.
- Whenever a non-bargelning unit employee was assigned/worked overtime in an institution/department/post represented by Local 408, a BUE represented by Local 408 had been skipped over. And,
- Where employees who were graded GS-12 and above, who should not have been allowed to work overtime, worked overtime; not only BUEs represented by Local 408, but BUEs represented by Locals 3696 and 405 were skipped over.

The Union also submitted evidence that every time "List Exempt Overtime Logs" were used to make overtime assignments, which it claims should be only in emergency circumstances, there was some abuse. For example, the Union found instances where employees were assigned/worked overtime continuously over short periods of time through the use of the "List Exempt" provision, which the Union claims would be almost impossible.

in order to quantify the astimated amount of overtime pay BUEs represented by Local 408 were denied by being skipped over; the Union's study used the selary for grade GS-08, step 6, as the everage pay of a BUE represented by Local 408. Admitting that its review was not a "professional study;" and, that there might be errors, the Union points out that their review clearly showed:

 During the August – October 2013 pariod BUEs represented by Local 408 ware skipped over for an estimated 6,154 hours of overtime; at an estimated hourly rate of \$40.04 that amounts to approximately \$246,406.00 in missed overtime pay.

- In November 2013 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 4,594 hours, at the estimated hourly rate of \$40.04 that emounted to some \$183,943.00 in missed overtime pay.
- In December 2013 SUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 2,084 hours, losing some \$82,643.00 in overtime pay.
- In January 2014 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 1,720 hours, losing some \$66,869.00 in overtime pay.
- In July 2014 BUEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over for an estimated 5,184 hours, iosing some \$207,567.00 in overtime pay.
- And, in June 2015 BUEs represented by Local 408 wars skipped over for an estimated 2,672 hours, losing some \$106,987.00 in overtime pay.

In total the Union argues that its limited review of overtime rosters between the period August 2013 and June 2015 found BUEs, represented by Local 408, were skipped over and lost out on an estimated 22,388 hours of overtime; and, were therefore, deprived of an estimated \$596,415,00 of overtime pay.

It should be noted that the Agency, while raising questions during Local 408's Chief Staward and President's testimony on the Union's review process and findings, presented no counter testimony and offered no comments on the raview and its findings through its post-hearing brief.

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator finds that:

17. the proponderance of the evidence prevented by the Union clearly shows that SUEs represented by Local 405, were skipped over in the assignmentificing of overtime during the period August 2013 through June 2015 when FCC Butner was operating under the new overtime hiring procedures established through its NOU with Locals 3895 and 405 as directed by the Complex Warden. And,

18. this action constituted a violation of the parties' Master Agreement.

As to whether or not the actions of the Agency [through and by the actions of the FCC Buther Complex Warden] constituted an unjustified and unversanted personnel action - The Arbitrator noise that the FLRA has ruled that a violation of a collactive bargeining agreement constitutes an unjustified or unversanted personnel action. ¹¹⁸

Accordingly, based on the preponderance of the evidence, the Arbitrator fields that:

19, the actions of the Agency (through and by the direction of the FCC Butner Complex. Warden) found above to have violated the provisions of the parties' Master Agreement, constitute on unjustified and unwarranted personnel action against the bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408. And,

20. The actions of the Agency [through and by the direction of the FCC Butner Complex Warden] resulted in the withdrawel or reduction of all or part of the pay, allowances, or differentials of the affected BUEs represented by Local 408 in violation of the Back Pay Act.¹⁰

Having found the actions of the Agency [through and by the direction of the FCC Butner Complex Warden] constituted a violation of the Back Pay Act, based on the prependerance of the evidence, the Arbitration further finds that:

21. the Agency (through the actions of the FCC Buiner Complex Warden, as well as, one or more institutional level Wardens at Buther[violated Federal law add/or regulations.

Here, the Arbitrator noise that, while the evidence presented by the Union clearly shows, in a persuasive manner, that a number of BLEs represented by Local 408 were skipped over in the assignment of overtime, losing out on

an estimated 22,388 hours of overtime and an estimated \$898,415.00 of overtime pay during the period August 2013 through June 2015; the exact number of BUEs affected, the exact amount of overtime lost, and the exact amount of individual loss has not yet been determined.

Accordingly, the Arbitrator notes that:

- the Back Pay Act provides in part that an employee "is entitled, on correction of the personnel action, to receive, for the period for which the personnel action was in effect -
 - an amount equal to all or any part of the pay, allowances, or differentials, as applicable which the employee nontally would have earned or received during the period if the personnel action had not occurred, less any amounts earned by the employee through other employment during that period; and
 - reasonable attorney fees related to the paraonnel action which, with respect to any decision relating to an unfair labor practice or a priovance processed...."
- the FLRA has ruled¹¹⁷ thet the threshold requirement for entitlement of attorney's fees under the BPA is a finding that the grievant was affected by an unjustified or unwarranted personnel action, which resulted in the withdrawel or reduction of the grievant's pay, allowances, or differentials. Once such a finding is made, the BPA further requires that an award of attorney's fees be:
 - in conjunction with an award of back pay to the griavant on correction of the personnel action;
 - reasonable and related to the personnel action; and
 - in accordance with the standards satisfished under 5 USC 7701(g) which pertain to attorney-fee awards issued by the Mark Systems Protection Board.
- the FLRA has also ruled that the threshold requirement for an award of altomey's fees under the BPA is a finding that the grisvent was affected by an unjustified or unwarranted personnel action, which resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of the grisvent's pay, allowances, or differentials. Once such a finding is made, fees may be awarded in accordance with the standards established in 5 USC 7701(g).¹¹⁶ And,
- In order to obtain fees, a party must prevail in the arbitration.³¹⁹ And,
 - to qualify as a prevailing party, an individual must have received "an enforceable judgment or settlement" which directly benefited him or har. For example, an arbitrator's reduction of a suspension to a reprimend qualified the grievant its the prevailing party.¹²⁰ Also.
 - an individual may be a prevailing party when he or she prevails on one theory of the case but fails under another theory.¹²¹

Accordingly, the Arbitrator acknowledges that the Union has asked for attorney's fees.

In view of the findings identified and discussed above it is the Arbitrator's conclusion that it is unsuccessary to address any of the other lesser arguments raised by the Agency and Unish because they were insievers, superfluous, redundent, rendered most, and of no persuasive value.

Based on the prependentrics of the evidence, the Arbitrator additionally finds:

As noted and explained above, the parties' Master Agreement clearly provides for local level negotiations of matters as specifically addressed in various articles and sections. Additionally, the MA specifically provides in Article 9, Section 8, that only one supplemental agreement (LSA) may be negotiated at each institution/facility. PMCS Case #14-50738-8, U.S. Department of Justice. Federal Bureau of Privone, Federal Contectional Complex, Bullner, North Caroline and the APGE, AFE-CIC, Council of Prison Locale #53, Local 408 and Mr. Anthony Little construent:

Since the MA has very specific provisions regarding the number of LSAs that can be negotiated, the time period when LSAs can be negotiated; as well as, the review, approvel, modification, and duration of LSAs - Based on the testimony of the President of the Council of Prison Locals¹²², that MOUs are considered to be basically the same as LSAs; the Arbitrator concludes that MOUs, while not having to go through the same review and approval process as LSAs, not being limited in numbers like LSAs, or not being limited as to when they can be negotiated like LSAs; nevertheless must be amended/modified in the same manner as LSAs; and, like LSAs expire on the same date as the Master Agreement, unless extended in the same manner as LSAs.¹²⁰

Accordingly, just as the Arbitrator has found that the Local 406, March 2912 MOU, executed on February 25, 2013, and the times-party MOU executed by the FCC Butner and AFGE Locals 3696 and 406 on July 1 and 2, 2013, were negotiated and executed in accordance with the parties' MA and "constituted part of the collective agreement between the Agency and the Union;" the Arbitrator based on the record as provided by the parties finds that:

22. both the Local 408, March 2012 NOU, executed on February 25, 2013, and the threeparty NOU executed by the FCC Butner and AFGE Locals 3696 and 405 on July 1 and 2, 2013, were not extended and/or renegotiated with the consent of all parties in accordance with provisions of the MA when the Master Agreement expired on or about May 24, 2014, and the current Master Agreement isocame effective, therefore, both NOUs expired on the date the previous MA expired.

That being the case, if FCC Buthar management continued to apply the provisions of the three-party MOU relating to overtime hiring procedures past the expiration of the old MA, into the period covered by the new MA, and beyond, without property extending the MOU and/or renegotiating under the provisions of the new MA; then the Arbitrator finds:

23. such action is in violation of the parties' Master Agreement (since the applicable provisions of both the old and the new Master Agreements are basically the same) and, if BUEs represented by Local 408 continued to be skipped over in overtime assignments, the actions of FCC management have caused that continued adverse action on each of the effected BUEs.

Finally, the Arbitrator takes special note regarding findings 17 through 20 as provided above and adknowledges that while the preponderance of the evidence presented by Local 406 clearly and sufficiently shows that BUEs represented by Local 408 were:

- skipped over in the assignment/hiring of overtime during the period August 2013 through June 2015 when FCC Butner was operating under the new overtime hiring procedures established through its MOU with Locets 3696 and 405 as directed by the Complex Warden; which
- constituted a violation of the parties' Mester Agreement; and was
- an unjustified and unwarranted personnel action against the bargaining unit employees represented by Local 408; which
- resulted in the withdrawal or reduction of all or part of the pay, allowances, or differentiats of the affected BUEs represented by Loost 406 in violation of the Back Pay Act.

While the evidence presented by Local 406 through testimony and documentation met the Union's burden of proof sufficiently to allow the findings as presented and explained above; the avidence presented was not sufficient to establish the individual identity of each BUE affected by name, position/job classification (title, series, and prede/step), with the stact amount of overtime hours they should have been assigned and ware not; as well as the individual identity of each employee who actually was assigned and worked the overtime (name, position/job classification (title, series, and prede/step)]. See required action below.

VII. Decision and Award.

As provided in Elkouri an arbitrator may issue an interim award without the agreement of the parties;¹²⁴ and relain jurisdiction so that their award is properly carried out and disagreements about the award can be resolved.¹²⁵

Accordingly, the following interim decision and award addresses the threshold issues raised and the merits of the subject case and serves as the Arbitrator's final and binding decision, in accordance with the provisions of the parties' Master Agreement, Article 32. Section h, regarding these matters; and may not be reconsidered by this Arbitrator as it would be improper because it is beyond the scope of the arbitrator's limited releation of jurisdiction. The Arbitrator retains jurisdiction for an unspecified period of time during which the parties are to getter and present evidence of the full extent to which bergaining unit employees represented by Local 408 here been harmed and total emount of damages, costs, and fees to be assessed.

As the issues to be ensurered by this decision were:

is the subject grievance barred by a previously filed ULP and/or procedurally flawed and, therefore, not arbitrable? If not ...

Did the Agency violate the provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties' Master Agreement (MA) when it decided a memorendum of understanding (MOU) between it and Local 408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overtime hiring procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 405 and 3898; and, in so doing, akipped over bergeining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was differed and assigned; thereby, adversely effecting bergaining unit employees represented by Local 408? If so, what should the remedy be?

Based on the Arbitrator's finding as discussed above, it is the Arbitrator's decision that:

The subject grisvance, identified as FLRA Case number 14-50739-8, filed by AFGE Local 408, by and through the actions of its President Anthony Little, on September 11, 2013, was properly filed in accordance with the provisions of the parties' filester Agreement, as provided for its Article 31. Therefore -

The answer to the first part of the issue statement - is the subject grievence barred by a previously filed bit panel by a ancior procedurally filewed and, therefore, not arbitrable? - is No; the subject grievence is NOT barred by a previously filed ULP and/or procedurally filewed, therefore, it is ARE/TRABLE.

The answer to the second part of the losue statement – Did the Agency violate the provisions of Federal law, regulations, and/or the parties' Mastar Agraement (MA) when it decided a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between it and Local 408 was ineffective and would no longer be honored; then, implemented overtime trining procedures based on a different MOU with Locals 406 and 3696; and, in so doing, stipped over bargeining unit employees represented by Local 408 when overtime was offered and assigned; thereby, adversely affecting bargeining unit employees represented by Local 408? – Is YES; the Agency [backagin the actions of the FCC Buther Complex Warden] did violate the provisions of Federal law and regulations, as related to the Back Pay Act, 5 USC \$6886, and the parties' Master Agreement.

The subject grievance is sustained.

The answer to the final part of the issue statement - If so, what should the remedy be? is, the Agency is ordered to:

- immediately upon receipt of this decision/award stop the use of the overtime hiring
 procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program established by, and
 described in, the three-party Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) executed on July 1 and
 2, 2013, by FCC Butner and AFGE Locals 3696 and 405; and
- reinstate use of the institutional specific overtime hiring procedures and utilization of the Correctional Services Roster program established by, and described in, the Manorandum of Understanding (MOU) initially executed between FCC Butner and AFGE Local 408 by

signature of Complex Warden Sarah Reveils on or about March 5, 2012, and fully executed by FCC Butner and AFGE Local 408, with FLRA approval on February 25, 2013.¹²⁸

Additionally, within thirty (30) calendar, days from receipt of this decision and award, the parties are ordered to formally report to the Arbitrator and provide him a written plan of action they will follow to;

- review the process used by Local 408 to review overtime assigned/hired during the period August 2013 through June 2015 to determine which BUEs represented by it had been skippedipaseed over/inct hired for overtime, that established the data presented at hearing as evidence in its case to provide the Arbitrator with an estimated total amount of overtime missed by the BUEs it represented and approximation of the pay, allowances, benefits, or differentiate lost by the affected BUEs; and
- conduct a <u>full and linerough review</u> of the official overtime assignment/hing records, including time and leave and/or other official attendance and pay records for the parloci August 11, 2013, up to the date the Agency takes the action directed above so as to provide the following information/date at hearing before the Arbitrator:
 - the <u>full name and classification</u> (title, series and grade/step) of every BUE represented by Local 408 and identified through the review directed by this order to have been skipped over, not allowed to sign-up for, and/or in any other way not to have been assigned/hired for any type of overtime to which the employee was and/or should have been entitled to for the period beginning August 31, 2013, up to the date the Agency takes the action directed above;
 - the total amount of overtime deprived for each identified and named BUE, shown per month/year/ and grand total for the period in question, together with the total dollar amount of pay, allowances, benefits, or differentials lost per monthlyear/ and grand total for the period in question;
 - the <u>full name and objection</u> (title, series and gradulatep) of the employee who actually was assigned/worked the overtime [For example]¹²⁷; and
- the projected amount of time the parties will need to complete the review, data gathering, and assembly of the information to be reported to the Arbitrator;
- the estimated number of days the parties will need to report the information to the Arbitrator and present their respective case regarding the findings and for/against damages, costs. etc., as allowed by the Back Pay Act; and
- offering three dates/periods when the hearing could be held.

The FINDINGS and INTERIM DECISION as presented above are made pursuant to Article 32 of the parties' Master Agreement, and mailed, per Section g, to the address as provided by each parties' representative/counted at the heating. Therefore, in accordance with Article 32, Section d, of eaid agreement the parties are directed to pay the face and costs of the undersigned Arbitrator as presented in his involce as mailed under separate cover.

So Ordered and Respectfully Stamitted William A. Dealy, Jr. Arbitrator (FMCS #3823

Date: May 31, 2016.

End Notes

Arbitrator/Joint exhibit A/J-7,...Testimony of Mr. Little, Transcript Vol. 1, ppe.184-185.

² A/J-4 ... Testimony of Mr. Hemingerey, Vol. 1, pps. 45-49... Scievence fled -- U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons form SP-S176.037 del May 1994 Formal Grievance Form showed: 1, the grievant(s) as Local 406, FCC Buller; 2, the daty station as FMC/FCI-2, Buller ROP; 3. the representiative of the grisvent(s) as Anthony Little, President, Loosi 408; 4. the informat resolution advergind with Labor Menagement Relation Chains, AW Manuel Coll and AW Jannifer Good (Designled Representatives of Wordon Apkar and Wordon Dutabar); 5. the Federal Prison Bysism Directive, Executive Order, Statute violation as Title 5 USC 7110, the Master Agreement, Articles 6 and 18, and the Back Pay Act; 6. In what way were each of the lidentified directives, orders, excludes, etc.) Volated ... the following visitement was provided "On 5/20/13, Complex Warden Apker violated Local 406's Overtime Hitler Procedure by changing the way Local 406 receives quarties. Local 408'elitOU sintee all Local 408 Sergebring Unit Staff will be granted/ansigned overtime eccording to their order as the Correctional Bervices Roster Program. When overlapse is manighed or refused, Local 408 bargaining shaff mense will rotate to the bottom of the overlame list. If no contact is made to the first staff member, a NG CONTACT (NC) will be noted and move to the next staff members, a NG CONTACT (NC) will be noted and move to the next staff members. If eventimes essignment is conceiled for whetever reason by Managament, assign staff's name will be reinstated to the original place on the list prior to the canceled needgement. Bargaining Unit Staff are being support on the overtime sign up to daily. (i.e.) Bargaining Unit Staff can sign up on two overtime list, so if one member signs up on the FMC/FC/2 reason and get eventime they would go to the boltom of the list. That some member can sign up for overtime on the PCI 1/Low roster and get overlime the next day so comeans in patting ellipped. On \$/20/13 Loost 408 Sargaining Unit Staff were not allowed to eign up on the FCI 1/Low overline socier. Prior to Management changing Local 406 Overline Hiring Procedures, overtime distribution for Local 400 was fair and equitable. This adverse action has effected all Local 400 Bargaining Unit Statt."; 7. the data(c) of the violation(a) were shown as Aug. 20, 2013 and continuously; 6, the requested remody was shown as..., full alloracy, legal fees and expenses incurred in the proceeding of the priorace will be relative of by the agency. That a come and design orders are incure against the Agency from further notice of the minute. The priorace will be relative to reprint, humanshift, or interdation, as a result of ling this glicument. That assimpts compared to the minute. The priorace will be ablent to reprint, humanshift, or interdation, as a result of ling this glicument. That assimpts compared to be granted and any other research the arbitrator doorse appropriate to interdation as a result of ling this person with whom fied was shown as the Eicheniado; 10. the bie shown as hitle Regional Director; 11. a signature of the recipient of the grinnappe was shown; 12. The data signed was shown so \$/11/13 ...

³ AU-5... Testimony of Mr. Little, Transcript Vol. I, pgs. 138-189.

⁴ A/J-B...Messacessium on ARGE, Local 408 letterhead of Michael Sharp, Chiof Serverd; dot September 25, 2013, to Mr. Herningway, HRM; subject, intert to Arbitrate; with routenment of the directives, orders, inter, contract provisions violated and full statement of the locue as provided on the formal grievance form. On October 31, 2013, PMCS provided the local parties the last of seven arbitrators with their bloc; on December 5, 2013, the focal parties belocked Arbitrator Dr. Edward Johnson; on December 9, 2013, PCC Stater notified Arbitrator with their bloc; on December 5, 2013, the focal parties belocked Arbitrator Dr. Edward Johnson; on December 9, 2013, PCC Stater notified Arbitrator Johnson; the parties had selected him to hear the added date; on January 23, 20114 Agency Representative Jon Powers was assigned the one; the February 28, 2014, the Unice motified the Agency that it had retained logal counsel, Mr. Ellion Mendoza, Mr. Powers and Ma. Mendoga agreed to hearing dates for August and September 2014; on May 14, 2014, new Agency; on May 27, 2014, the Unice and Agency representatives of the Unice and Agency representatives and retaining dates of December 3, 4, 10 and 11, 2014; on December 9, 2014, Arbitrator on and Agency representatives and connected the Unice and Agency representatives and connected the Unice and 14, 2014; on December 9, 2014, Arbitrator on and Agency representations of December 3, 4, 10 and 11, 2014; on December 9, 2014, Arbitrator and Agency dates of December 3, 4, 10 and 11, 2014; on December 9, 2014, Arbitrator and Agency or representatives and connected hearing dates do to his with's medical condition...Arbitrator indicated that due to uncertaining a new route undertained the to his with's medical condition...Arbitrator indicated that due to uncertaining a new route of arbitrator was estated by the parties, ...The Local parties were theory fallem A, Dealy, Jr.).

⁶ The undersigned's initial content with the parties was through an enall from the Union's Counsel, Ms. Lillaw Mendoze dated January 2, 2015 providing that the was representing AFGE, Local 405 in "the Buther Overtime case" and auggesting Stewart periods of fine us hearing dates. Following 4 series of email communications with the parties and FMCE; the undersigned received the January 5, 2015 antigement Millst. The FMCB identified initial contexts as: 1. Mr. Swphen R. Jones, HRM at FCC Buther, P.O. Box 1000, Buther, NC 27698 for the agency, and 2. Mr. Arthory D. Little, Chief Steward, AFGE Local 406, at 3212 Vallejo Trait, Religio, NC 27610 for the union.

⁶ The 100 page document, executive on February 8, 1998, comprised of a preamble with 42 Articles, bet appendices, and index and signature page, and, as provided in Article 42 was effective upon completion of the Usion radioation and Agency head review, for a period of three (3) years [March 8, 1996 - Neroh 8, 2001] which could be artended in one (1) year increments by maked convert of the parties. Written notice than easy (80) days but not more than integer years to be given by either party to the other notices than easy (80) days but not more than integer (90) days prior to the appendices and date to amend the Agroement. If netter party desired to renegative the Agroement, the parties were required to success and date.

⁷ This was important since Article 42 of the hard copy agreement provided "it makiner party dealered is romagatinis the Agreement, the particle wave required to encourse new signatures and date," And, no documentation was provided that the MLA had been grounds hav signatures and date," And, no documentation was provided that the MLA had been grounds hav signatures and date," And, no documentation was provided that the MLA had been grounds hav been stranded as provided in Article 42. That is, no documentation was provided that the agreement had been saturded in one-year induced from Margh 5, 2001 with new algorithms and date pages. The parties common Article 42. That is, no documentation was provided that the agreement have been saturded in one-year induced of time (3) youre (July 21, 2-14 - July 20, 2017) and can be astanded in one (1) year increations by mutual comparts of the parties; unless within police is given by alther party to the other not less than shot (60) days but not more than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date that it desired to answer! We Agreement. If nelliter party dealers to renegative the Agreement, the parties are again required to assess now algorithm to the other not less than shot (60) days but not more than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date that it desired to answer! We Agreement. If nelliter party dealers to renegative the Agreement, the parties are again required to assess now algorithm and the value of the other not less than shot (60) days but not more the agreement. If the agreement, if nelliter party dealers to renegative the Agreement. If adding the the dealers to renegative the Agreement, and the agreement against the agreement in affect at the tribute, have appendices, and takes and algorithm page. A finited service of the outern's agreement against the agreement in affect at the tribute, and a provision of the subject grievance found several any provisions have based to any date the adapted to any agreement against the agreements in affect at the tr

⁶ Arbitrator's record of the administrative conference...

Arbitrator: Article 32, Section h. of the parties' MLA provides in part, that the Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subleact from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of the agreement or publish Pederal Bureau of Prisons policies and requisitions. Accordingly are the parties placing any offer restrictions on my power to hear and decide this mailer? My, Nondoza? Ma. Mendoza: No air.

Arbitrator: Mr. Matidavicz?

Mr. Mattewice: No.

* The Union's technical representative was identified as Ma. Cheryl Baniel: and the Agency's technical representative was identified as Ma. Otie Hanie.

¹⁹ Arbitrator's record of the administrative contenence...

Arbitratur: In regard to instance of the decision, I note Arbitrature 2, Section 4, of the MLA provides that the Arbitrature is to render his decision, I note Arbitrature 2, Section 4, of the Davides that the Arbitrature is to render his decision within 30 clays of the completeneous the hearing unions otherwise agreed to by the parties. My calendar is fully full and i would like to eak the parties to consider giving me the full 60 days that FMCS allows in the providence. As the parties have any presidence with this? Me. Mendeza: No. Mr. Methiester: Arbitrature 2, So it will be allow after the close of the hearing.

¹¹ As explained at the administrative contention, three exhibit flats were being maintained - (1) the Additation light Exhibit list which would record all documentary evidence identified an joint exhibits and all documentary evidence requested by the Additator; (2) the Agency/Employer List recording all documentary evidence offered by and accepted from the Agency; and (3) the Union/Grievent List recording all documentary evidence offered by and accepted from the Grievant.

12 Transcript Vol. I, pg 15-16...

Arbientor: With the woopbun of the contexts and consequence-just identified, as well an professional activities limit coording stry 30-plus years of Federal hardes involving the activity and Union, to my Invalidge, I have had no previous cannect or relationship with any of the specific parties to fining representing. Do the parties have any concerns or issues regarding stry shifty to conduct it fair and impartial hearing its The federal before us? Ma. Membercian? Ma. Membercian? Arbiegtor: Unit. Nardewicz? Mr. Martiewicz; No. wir,

¹⁰ The hearing was conducted in two sessions, the first session chains the period Acquet 4-6, 2015, during which the period's addenged threshold issues; other which, its Union presented the majority of its onso in ohis?. However, on the third day of hearings the Agency's addenged owne is the hearing feeling it and by mid-day determined the would not be able is continue. After discussions with the Countries and require of catendary, it was determined to adjourn and reconverse the hearing on November 18, 2015. Sold hearing was reconversed at SAGAN, November 18, 2015. On this day the Union completed its cause in chief and the Agency pretented its cause. The hearing was completed and adjourned at 1:50MM. Wednesday, November 18, 2015.

¹⁴ Bryant Court Reporting Services, Inc., recorded the proceedings and provided both electronic and hard copy variable of the transmitt to the period and Arbitrativ. 662 pages of transcripts.

15 Thereord Vol. IV pg 145-148...

Arbitrator:	initially a select, and both partice, note that they had no problems with my ability to hear and nander a decision in this case. I also mand, after
	without fight the stimicity of the lister Agreement, relative to Arbitrativ pewerk, we to whether the parties was placing any additional
	resolutions on me. Both partice, cold they wave not. Having said all that, Me. Manyoza, on tashaif of the Union, do you fast you've had a flag
	and appropriate approximity to present the statement that you were to present for this case?
No. Mendicity:	Yes, uir.
Arbitrator:	Mr. Markinwitz, on behalf of the Agency, do you feel you've toto the opportunity to present your date as you wanted to present \$7
his blackback	

¹⁰ With regard to the documentary syldence presented, and particularly the witness testimony presented at training, no Address has accept to impress uses the partial the prime of the relation of the need to provide the particularly cognized by provide the existence is particularly cognized by provide the case. As to withere the Address is particularly cognized to access the variable of witherease by paying particular standards to the devices of the withereas, the character of the leading with any self-standard of the witherease the witherease by paying particular standards to the devices of the witherease by paying particular standards to the devices of the witherease the character of the leading with any self-standard of the witherease.

¹⁷ See endnölti 2 above.

¹⁹ It should be noted that in the Arbitrater's appointment acceptance letter both parties were efforded the opportunity in file pre-basing briefs and only the Union submitted usid brief by the deadline for such submissions.

¹⁰ Arbitrator's record of the administrative conformoe...

Additudes: Based on the information provided me it appears that the purpose of the scheduled hearing is to determine if the applicable CEA. It's suppose and representations of understanding when it failed to honor and comply with a Patriany 2013 Federal Lator Relations Authority approved antisection and representations of understanding when it failed to honor and comply with a Patriany 2013 Federal Lator Relations Authority approved antisective and representative of understanding when it failed to honor and comply with a Patriany 2013 Federal Lator Relations Authority approved antisective and representatives of understanding between the Council of Polyment Lator Relations Authority approved antisective and representatives of understanding between the Council of Polyment Lator Relations Federal Complex regarding overtime proceedime. Is the everyometric understanding of the Submer Relations of the Relations of the Submer Relations of the Submer Relations of the Submer Relations of the Relations of th

" Additionary record of the administrative conference...

Arbitrator. Additionally, proheeting submissions ware: (1) a copy of the US Dept. of Justice, Federal Busines of Prisone, formal grievance targe, 8P-\$176.017 completed by Mr. Anthony Juste, President of AFGE Local 408 on Sept 11, 2013, and a memoranization page C. Eliuninus, Regional

	Director, filld Adaptic Regional Office, US Depil. of Justice, Federal Burtesu of Princes to Mr. Anthony Little, Prinident, APGE Local 608, dated Sept. 20, 2013, Subject: Formal Gelerance, which provided in part: "because you filed your grievance with the regional director & is imagenerically filed". Accordingly, we there any additability or other firmibilits leaves that need to be addreamed? Ste. Mandetaf
No. Mondate:	If the spansy is going to retain the regional director's allegation that the printerice was inappropriably that then we will request authoritation to chaipings that directly.
Arbitrator:	får, Mariliendez ave you, is trere an etbiltsäidly mattan?
hir. Hæijipviltz:	There are a few architebility contains. That will be one of them. Whether the grievance was filed to the right office. The other will be velocitien the grievance was filed timely under the provisions of the CBA. And the other would be whether the grievance was berred by an article infor- practice first was filed out first by the Union over the same beau.
Arbitetter:	So the ensure is yes, there's achieved by questions. As I read the document as provided in the Union's prohenting submissions and identified in the parties' CBA regime Aritie St. Generators Procedures, nor Article 32, Arbitration, address insuits of whitehilds. Heready being of procedural arbitrability are addressed by the arbitrator. However the parties may also jointly sufficients an arbitrability to dealed sublighted and made any decisions on how they want to proceed?
Ma. MandPot:	No we are just interving today that the Agency's going to mice arbitrability interes.
Arbitrator.	So K hear's been deputated?
Ma. Mandhila:	
Arbitrator:	Ciny. Will be hearing achecking im indined to proceed to hearing and have the parties and argue the arbitrability isource(questions and then proceed with the merile of the case. Or we can hold a separate histing. And have the basing an arbitrability isource(and into a separate histing. And have the basing an arbitrability instantian, and then bonk and do the whole thing again on hearing. Im inclined to do the first. Here you argue your arbitrability related to grant and then bench and then bench and the first. Here you argue your arbitrability for arbitrability for a second on the second of the first. Here you argue your arbitrability for arbitrability for arbitrability for arbitrability for arbitrability for arbitrability for the first. Here you argue your arbitrability for ar
Ms. Mandtiti	Yee, usually fite way we do it, we do the arbitrability first and then we considere with the marks of the case. Searing in stand that this case was initially achieved for lest December and the houring hed to be classified due to the Arbitrahor's wife medical condition. So you the Union is ready to proceed on with the case and ways the leaves the Agency presents.

Mr. Martigenter: We can do the first, since we're all have.

²¹ The record shows that AFGE Local 406 field two related Unital Labor Precises charges with the Federal Labor Relations Authority against stansgement at FCC Rulear prior to Sing the subject grievence; case number WA-CA-12-0613 field April 15, 2012; and case number WA-CA-13-0636 field July 25, 2013.

VIA-CA-12-0513 charged that the Agency violated 5 USC 7116(a) motions 1, 2, 4, and 6 in thet...

On Optimber 25, 2011, Looal 408 and the Agency enfored into responding an the tester of overline heiring protectores and utilization of the correctional services program. On Monday, Merch 5, 2012, Local 408 and the Agency care to an agreement, Local 408 President Maris Dilard and the Agency Complex Warden for a favorite signation of understanding heaves to the Agency Complex Warden for a favorite signation of understanding heaves to the Agency Complex Warden for a favorite signation of understanding heaves to the Agency Complex Warden for a favorite signation of understanding heaves to the Agency that the MOU was in effect. On March 12, 2012, Warden Johns called for Local 408 and 3088 to what negotiations on a MOU for a total compare and the date of a favorite program. Local 408 sectors way strongered because of President and the agency that the MOU was in effect. On March 12, 2012, Warden Johns called for Locals 406, 409 and 3088 to war answered by 9th Agency that the MOU was in effect. On March 12, 2012, Warden Johns called for Locals 406, 409 and 3088 to war answered by 9th Agency that the MOU was in effect. On March 12, 2012, Warden Johns called for Locals 406, 409 and 3088 to war answered by 9th Agency that the MOU was in effect. On March 12, 2012, Warden Johns called for Locals 406, 409 and 3088 to war and response were prevent. Warden Johns addree and 3088 to war proceed. Warden Johns addree and this forum to Tarvage and Information in for a fact and a state of the sector and information and information in a formation and an addree and the sector and the sector and the sector and information and information and the prevent. He detive and Local 4019 Michael and the sector and beam and information and the prevent and the sector and to weight were and Johns and Marce 12, 2012, by America Local 401 and the back and Local 4019 Michael and the sector and the sect

("Note: All the title fits Stater, Federal Connectional Complex was constrained of four expenses institutions, Pederal Connectional Institutions? (FOI-1), Federal Connectional Institution & (FCI-2), the Low Becurity Connectional Institution (LSCI) and the Federal Burlinel Center (FAC). The disruptor is headed by the Complex Warder, while much separate institution to headed by a subcodenate Warder. As of the date of the autignet MOU, Warder, Revela was both the Complex Warder and the FMC Warder, Warder, Vorder, Johns was the Warder, tor FCI-2.]

WA-CA-13-0538 charged lite: the Agency violated 5 USC 7116(a) sections 1, 5, 7, and 8 in litet ...

On Selecting 26, 2013, Nerostan referred to as the Agency, and the Council of Prices Loosis, Loosi 408, heraetter referred is as the Union, whered into a Getamment Agreement for the Federal Labor Relation Authority case number WA-GA-12-0513. This way a Managendum of Understanding on Overlane Hims Procedures and Ultitation of Connectence Services Rester Program for Loosi 400, On July 3, 2013, the Agency reputated and violated this Settlement Agreement, by signing a new MEMORADUM OF Understanding concerning Countries fifting Procedures and Ultitation of Connectence Rester Program for Loosi 400, On July 3, 2013, the Agency reputated and violated this Settlement Agreement, by signing a new MEMORADUM OF Understanding concerning Countries fifting Procedures and Ultitation of Connectence Rester Program will: AFGE Loosi 3006 and 405. The Agency will be new Memorandum of Understanding approaches the Batternet's Agreement citized February 25, 2013 for Loosi 400. The Agency and President Anthony Labe & memorandum form Complex Warden Gring Aplex and FCI-2 Warden Angels Counter stalling two will no longer basis that the Interpretation of Understanding on Overlane Rester and they attackaged Provident Lible to sign the many Memorandum for Content and the Memorandum Action of Understanding on Overlane Resteries and they attackade Provident Lible to sign the many MCU. The Union loose the Memorandum of Understanding on Overlane Resteries and they attackade wide while the set and they attack the to sign the many MCU. The Union loose that is repudiation for the violating the agreement between management and the Union which on adding a many attack on the Union... Requalited Resteries.

²⁰ American Federation of Government Employees, ALF-CIO, Loost 1411 vs. Federal Labor Relations Authority, 980 F.2d 176 (1892).

²² International Association of Machiness and Aaroapsce Workers, Lodge 39 and L.S. Department of the Nevy, Nevel Aviation Depot, Norfolk, Virginia, 44 FLRA 1291 (1982) ²⁴ Article 31, Session e, provides..." If a grewance is liked after the applicable deciding, the arbitrator will decide timelimes if mined as a threshold issue."

³⁵ Subree vs. United Brotherhood of Corporters and Johnsre, Local No. 33, 921 F.2d 398, 402, 405 (1990).

²⁶ As the pretece to both the each and accepted as the most comprehensive, definitive, and authoritative treates on hibst additation. Morke² has, since its inception, been accepted and accepted as the most comprehensive, definitive, and authoritative treates on hibst additation. Acceptingly, guidence from this fathed work is often died in triats, arbitration decisions and sweets, and other forms of judicial and administrative decisions. However, suspeny clusters are more precise and specific than applied here. Nevertheless, the Arbitrator takes note of the Agency's reference.

22 Ching A/olimitus/Joint Exhibit 4.

* Case number WA-CA-13-0636.

² Testimony of Mr. Jonethan Hemingway, Butner FCC HRM. Transcript Vol. 1, pages 40-42.

²⁰ Equitable derivation of overtime, investoid determination of arbitrability, motion to densise granted as grievence was unlimely field, APGE Local 1243 and USP Atvates. FMCS 08-50831 (2006) (Arbitrator Fincher): Equitable distribution of workloads, Brownold determination of arbitrability, unlimely field and grievence denied. FOC Coleman and APGE Local 506, FMCS 08-54256 (2007) (Arbitrator Overtability, Unlimely field end grievence denied. FOC Coleman and APGE Local 506, FMCS 08-54256 (2007) (Arbitrator Overtability, Unlimely field end grievence denied. FTC Oldstons City and APGE Local 5013, FMCS 08-55151 (2010) (Arbitrator Highes): Average and APGE Local 5013, FMCS 08-55151 (2010) (Arbitrator Highes): Violation of Article 20 of the perfect Master Agreement, drawers, grievence denied, FCC Users and APGE Local 5013, FMCS 08-55151 (2010) (Arbitrator Highes): Violation of Article 20 of the perfect Master Agreement, drawers, grievence denied, FCC Vaceo City and AFGE Local 5013, FMCS 10-55151 (2010) (Arbitrator Senders); Violation of Article 20 of the perfect Master Agreement, drawers, grievence denied, FCC Vaceo City and AFGE Local 5013, FMCS 11-52 (3651 (2011) (Arbitrator Senders); Disophrays action, threatold determination of arbitrability, failure in involute arbitrability action, threatold determination of the birability, failure in involute arbitrability of the sentence denied. FCC Vaceo City and AFGE Local 5015, FMCS 10-52(49) (2011) (Arbitrator Senders); Disophray action, threatold determination of the birability, failure in involute arbitrability of the sentence denied. FCI Elitis and Article 20 of the perfect determined on endertable determination of the birability, failure in property involue arbitrability and greenenes denied. FCI Elitis and Article 28 of the sentence denied. FCI Elitis and Article 28 of the arbitrability of the sentence denied. FCI Elitis and Article 28 of the determination of arbitrability, failure in property involve arbitrability and processes and greenenes denied. FCI Elitis a

³⁴ Cling Day's of the Air Force, Option Air Logistics Cit., Mill Air Force Base, Ubin, 38 FLRA 1409, 1417 (1991); US. Faad & Drug, Admin, Northeast & Mid-Atlantic Regione, 53 FLRA 1269, 1273-74 (1998); Dep't of Defense Dependents Ochoole, 12 FLRA 52, 53 (1963).

²² The "covered by" doctine is based on the idea that a party should not have to begain over matters abased contained in or covered by an existing agreement...See Bureau of Prisons v. Federal Labor Heightons Asthonity, 654 F.3d \$1 (2011); AFGE, Local 225, 56 FLRA 686, 889 (2003).

²⁴ Hore the Agency cites porvisions found in Elicourt & Elicourt relating to the subject of metagement rights sited by Arbitrator Chang in his decision/sward on a previous BOP/AFGE grievance that want to arbitration; AFGE, Loost 1216 and FDC Honotelu laured January 7, 2016, by Arbitrator Lou Chang.

²⁴ Here the Agency glas signing previous BOP/AFGE grievance the want to arbituilion PAICS Case #05-51919 AFGE Council of Prison Loosis 33 and Federal Burnats of Prisons, issued Beplanticer 5, 2008 by Arbitution Claistophan Hensymen, providing to part that BCP bargaining unit amployees from other inalitations who want to account institution were paid overfilms while at the temporary duty location.

³¹ Cling Bob v. Wolten, 141 U.S. 529, 14 547 (1979) and Rhodes v. Chapmen, 452 U.S. 337 (1981).

³⁶ Cling AFGE, AFLCKO, Loost 683 and Department of Justice, Federal Correctional Institution Sondalane, Mignesote, 30 FLRA 497, 500-01 (1987).

²⁹ Citing international Plate Printers, Die Stampers, and Engravers Union of North America, AFL-CiO, Local 2 and Department of the Transvery, Summu of Engraving and Printing, Washington, D.C., 25 FLRA 113, 144-48 (1987) (Provision 35).

²⁶ Oling American Federation of Government Employees, Local 1923 and U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Care Financing Admitistration, Balance, Maryland, 44 FLRA, 1406, 1465-68 (1992) (Propossi17).

** Citing National Education Association, Oversees Education Association, Lauret Bay Teachors Association and US. Department of Defaures. Department of Defaures Demastic Schools, Lauret Bay Depandents Schools, Lauret Bay, South Caroline, 61 FLRA 733, 738 (1996).

⁴⁹ Citing American Pederation of Government Employees, Local 3157 and US. Department of Agriculture, Federal Grain Integration Sender, 44 FLRA 1570, 1566 (1962).

⁴⁷ Citing National Association of Agriculture Employees and U.S. Department of Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspector, Service Plant Protection and Quarantine, 51 FLRA 843 (1998), review denied, National Association of Agriculture Employees v...PLRA, No. 95-1105 (D.C. Cir. Dec. 20, 1998); Anastean Federation allovernment Employees, APL-CiC, Localt 525 and Department of the Nevy, Nevel Ar Station, Ocean, Vegicia, 30 FLRA 1105 (1988). ⁴² Cling DODDS, Pso. Region and Overnees Educ. Astr h, 31 FLRA 305, 312-13 (1988).

⁴² The offed cases was initiated by a grievance field by AFGE Local 406 on Jensery 12, 2009, and involved actions by menogement to and a past practice. Following negotiations and mediation by the parties, on April 19, 2010, a settlement agreement was signed by the parties, Subsequently, on Suptember 17, 2010, a second giverance was field because the Agency implemented a change regarding the second giverance was field because the Agency implemented a change regarding the second giverance was field because the Agency implemented a change regarding the second giverance was field because the Agency implemented a change regarding the second giverance was field because the Agency implemented a change regarding the second devided by Arbitration Earlier J. Wood - FMCB Gase #11-51176 instead July 23, 2012 (Gived in the subject case at hearing and in Agency's peak Benting exhibit 23); exceptions folied - 67 FLRA 108, AFGE, Local 405 w. U.S. DOJ, BOP, FCC Butter decision May 19, 2014.

⁴⁴ Citing U.S. Department of Veterane Affairs, Modical Center, North Chicago, illinois and American Federation of Government Employees, Local 2107, 52 FLRA 387, 392 (1996).

⁴⁵ Citing Department of Health and Human Services and AFGE Local 1668 (July 2000) 56 FLRA 83.

⁴⁴ As of 2012 the Federal Correctional Complex at Bathan, NC, was comprised of four institutions dissignated as - Federal Connectional institution Two (FCI-2), the Low Security Connectional Institution (LBCI), and the Federal Medical Conter (FNIC). The Complex was basked by a Wardan, who at the time was Wardan Serah Revela, and each Institution was headed by a Wardan, Wardan - White the Complex Wardan, Wardan Ravela served also as the Wardan of the Federal Medical Medical Contor, (FNIC). The Complex was basked by a Wardan, Wardan Angela Durbar was the designated Wardan for FCI-1 and the LBCI, and Wardan Angela Durbar was the designated Wardan for FCI-2. Also, as of 2012 there were four AFGE Local within the Complex - Local 400's institution coverage was generally the LSCI; Local 400's institutional coverage was generally the LSCI; Local 400's institution coverage was generally the LSCI; Local 400's institution coverage was generally the LSCI; Local 400's institutional coverage was generally the LSCI; Local 400's institutional coverage was generally the LSCI; Local 400's institutional coverage was generally FCI-1; and Local 400's institutional coverage was generally the LSCI; Local 400's institution coverage was generally FCI-1; and Local 400's institution for FCI-2; Local 400's institution coverage was generally FCI-1; and Local 400's institution for FCI-2; Alexa, each Local 400's institution for the following divisional coverage for responsibility, which might change by institution - Local 400's represented involves in statutional, the following divisional activities - Reordational LCCII; Local 400's repres

(It should be noted that the Arbitrator was provided a documented explaining who the Complex Vierden and the Individual Individual Nethodow Warden at version policies of the analytic of the subject grissence and there were difference between the two explanation due to versere. Warden policies and uncertainty as to who was ading at any given point in itse...However, the amerscaus is that Canif. Result served on the test of the Analytic and the Complex and FMC Warden from 2013 Bridging 2014 and Complex and FMC Worden from 2009 through 2012 and that Graig Aplear served as Complex and FMC Warden from 2013 Bridging 2014 and Kerneth Allisson was the Complex and FMC Warden as of the date of the hearing in the subject case.]

⁴⁷ Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit, A/J-3.

** It should be noted that the Manorandom of Understanding addressed by the FLRA approved Settlement Agreement of Fabruary 25, 2013, and signed by Local 406 and FCC obtains the same day was identified as being between the Council of Prison Locale, Local 408 (or the Linion) and the Federal Connectional Complex, Butner, NC (as the Agency).

** Agency/Employer Exhibit, E-1.

²⁰ The term "republicion" is defined in Binok's Low Dictionary as rejection; disclaimer; resuscitation. The rejection or refund of an stilling or available right or privilege, or of a duty or relation...Republicion of a contract means refused to perform duty or oblightles much to ther party. Such consists in such words or actions by contracting party as indicated that he is not going to perform his contract in the lifetime.

** Werden Craig Apter

¹² Cilling Educuri & Elhouri, How Arbitration Works, 6th Ed. At pages 218-219.

⁴⁸ Anticle 31, Bection f 1, provides "when tilling a grievence, the grievence will be filed with the Chief Europhyse Officer of an individual for which the Chief Europhyse Officer of the individuality has disciplinary multisety over...."

⁵⁴ Testimony of Mr. Jonathan Hemingway, Bulner FCC HRM, Transcript Vol. I, pages 43-57.

⁴⁵ Article 31, Section 12, provides "when thing a griavance against the Chief Executive Officer of an institution/lectity, or when thing a griavance against the actions of any manager or supervisor who is not employed at the griavant's institution/lectity, the griavance will be the appropriate Regional Director..."

**\$ UBC §7103 (e)(2) delines "employee" to mean an individual---

(A) sensioyett in an agency; or

- (5) whose employment in an agency has oussed because of any unleir labor practice under section 7116 of this tills and who has not obtained any other regular and substantially equivalent employment, as determined under regulations prescribed by the Pederiji Exper-Relations Authority; but does not include---
 - (i) an alian or noncilizen of the United States who occupies a position scales the United States;
 - (ii) A member of the uniformed services;
 - (iii) a supervisor or a management official;

- (iv) an officer or employee in the Foreign Service of the United States employed in the Department of State, the International Communication Agency, the Agency for international Development, the Department of Agriculture, or the Department of Commence; or
- (v) any person who participates is a strike in violation of section 7311 of this ritle;
- ⁶⁷ Union Exhibit, U-5.
- Union Exhibit, U-8.
- Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit, A/J-2.
- Testimony by Mr. Morris Ollard, Poel President, AFGE, Local 408, Vol. 1, pps. 71-91.
- ⁴¹ Union Exhibit, U-2.
- 42 Union Exhibit, U-3.
- ⁴⁶ Citing Custome Service, 18 FLRA, 85 FLRR 1-1146.
- ⁴⁴ Gling Laberboomy Army Depot, 34 FLRA 605, 90 FLRR 1-1126.

⁴⁵ Climp U.S. Department of the Air Force, Headquartere, Air Force Legistics Command, Wright-Patternon Air Force Base, Ohlo, 30 FLRA 624, 531 (1900)("Wright-Patterson")

⁴⁰ Ching DMelon of Millery and News) Affaire, State of New York, 7 PLRA 321, 338 (1981); and U.B. Department of Justice. Executive Office for immigration Review and AFGE Local 288, 51 FLRA page 485 (2005).

- ⁵⁷ Testiniony of Mr. Shell Accentors, Transcript Vol. HI, pgs. 33-98.
- ¹⁴ Union Exhibits, U-15-19 and 30-33.
- ⁸⁹ 5 UBC 5595

²⁰ Citing AFGE Local 5690 and Bureau of Princips 89 FLRA 21 (2015) Exhibit 23 of the Unions post-Inverting brief.

⁷⁷ Ching Defense Physics and Accounting Service, 104 LRP 45549, 60 FLRA 251 (2004). Exhibit 24 of the Union's post-bearing brief.

¹² The concept of proveling party status was explained in Department of the Newy, Norbit, Navet Shipyard, 90 FLRR 1-1148, 34 FLRA 725 (1990), [Exhibit 25, Union's post-hearing brief] where the FLRA, borrowing language from the U.S. Court of Appenia, Federal Circuit sold that determining who prevails is essentially "a totaling up of who won and who lost."

⁷⁵ Citing General Services Administration, 106 LRP 31780, 61 FLRA 58 (2006). Exhibit 26, Union's post-hearing brief.

⁷⁷ Citing Derwer VA Medical Center, 94 FLRR 1-1145, 49 FLRA 1403 (1994). Exhibit 27, Union's post-bearing brief.

⁷⁹ While no elever delineation or explanation of this tool agent/affiliate relationship was provided by the parties, either in helimony of finangle documentation; the Arbitrator has chosen is follow and apply the ArBit organizational and supresentational relationship as identified and unadan FLRA case materials as explained by the FLRA Office of Administrative Low Judges...For example we caster findings in U.S. Department or Justice, thereas of Princes, U.S. Madeal Center for Federal Princess. Springited, Missouri and American Federation of Government, Employaes, AFL-CiO, Local 1612, Case No. DE-CA-80741 dated August 18, 1999.

²⁸ Union Exhibit, U-6 and 7.

²⁷ Testimony of Mr. Montis Dillard, Vol. 1, pgs 7 1-93.

⁷⁰ Gelevance flied by Local 406 on January 12, 2009, by VP Local 405 William Boseman: Violation of Federal Prisor Directive, Experitive Order, Statute, HR Menuel, Mester Agreewant, Back Pay Act. . On December 4, 2009, Local 405 became aware of a memorandum from Acting AW of UNICOR, Rogers. The memorandum stated that the Bergeining unit employees is UNICOR may not consider thermalenes as quidilled employees if the available overtime shift overlaps their register UNICOR whit. The Union requested to bergein over this due to the fact that the Bergeining unit employees is UNICOR may not consider thermalenes as quidilled employees if the available overtime shift overlaps their register UNICOR whit. The Union requested to bergein over the due to the fact that the Bergeining unit employees shell be treated the same to the fact that the Bit the scarrent and standing past practice done in all other departments. His inservational violates Title a USC, Master Agreement HS THE Human Resources Manual. The Mester Agreement states that, "all employees shell be treated the same is all espects of performed management." The Union met with A. Beeter, Gonglan Warden, at FGC Bidner to by to informally resolve the issue. Warden Beeter Informed his management. The Union met with A. Beeter Agreement Market is digit violate to be year to by to informally resolve the issue. Warden Beeter Informed his management. The Union met with A. Beeter Complex Warden, at FGC Bidner to by to informally resolve the issue. Warden Beeter Informed his management. The Union met with A. Beeter Market is digit violate to by pay regulation Union President Julius Pyles and Union Your President Julius Pyles and Union Your Noon, who is over UNICOR, but he reduced to bergein strider takent without the Note of the Noote' December Agreement Article 16 Sec. P..., Dates of Violation the bard an experime affect on bargeiring unit employees. This is a direct violation feeling Header at July 23, 2012 and 57 FLRA 106.

¹⁹ Belliament Agreement executed April 19023, 2010, between Local 403 and Butsor FCC, FMCS Case Number 200319-54667-3 relating to overtime...This settlement agreement is identified in Arbitrator Bathers Woods decision/sward issued July 23, 2012 as relating to the grievance field by Local 406 on January 12, 2089. ²⁰ Filed by Local 406 VP William Bosemast for violation of Back Pay Act, 5 USC \$5596(b)(1)(A). Program Siniament 3900.03, Menter Agreement Article 5, Section 52 and 8, FileA...On August 15, 2019 the agency implemented a change regarding the established past practice of darf being allowed to work overtime that conflicts antitor overlaps with their primary shift...Tris change was implemented without regolisting with Local 405, the cole and anticolve representative of its bargetring unit...This change was only applicable to bargetring unit members of Local 405 and 405, the cole and anticolve representative of its bargetring unit...This change was only applicable to bargetring unit members of Local 405 and 405, the cole and anticolve representative of its bargetring unit...This change was only applicable to bargetring unit members of Local 405 and not bargetring unit members throughout the entire complex at Buther...It involves excluding or restricting members of one group from opportunities that are evaluable to another group which is involved to 58...See Articitation Barbara J. Woods' Decision/Award did July 23, 2012 and 57 FLRA 108 AFGE, Council of Primes Locals, Local 405 and USCOV, FBOP, FCC Butter did May 19, 2014.

¹⁴ Union Exhibit, U-2...Mesnecondum of Understanding, Council of Prisone, Local 408 and FCC Subser, Overline Hising Procedures, USENESS, of Connectional Services Roster Program, FCE-2and FMC, executed November 4, 2010, for Agency Sara Reveit, Complex/FMC Warden, D.R. Stevens, Warden FCE-2 and Tracy Johns, Warden FCE-1/LSCI; for Union Manis Officed, President,

²⁰ Union Exhibit, U-3...Momorandum of Understanding, AFGE, Council of Prisons Local 33, Locals 3696, 405, and 406 and FCC Buiner, periodsing to humates assigned to FCI-1 and LSCI and transfer for medical to FNG and outside Hospital Coverage, executed December 13, 2011, for FCC Buiner, Tracy Johns, Vienter, FCI/LBCI, for Unions officers from such traces.

⁴⁰ Union Exhibit, U-9 and 10.

¹⁴ Union Exhibit, U-14...ULP filed by Local 408 charging: Complex Warden and management with bad fully bergeining and no intentions of reaching agreement with Linkon on Local 408's MOU.

⁴⁵ Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit A&-3...Closicre of FLRA ULP Case Number VSA-CA-12-0513...<u>Selferment Agreement provides</u> ~ The undervious 1998 - 199 Agoncy and the undersigned Charging Party is selficient of the above matter, and subject to the approval of the Regional Director on behalf of the Federal Labor Relations Authority, HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: ACTION TO BE TAKEN: The Agency epress to execute and bener the Panties' Memorandum of Understanding on Overline Heing Providures and Utilization of Correctional Services Roster Program. POSTING OF NOTICE: The Agency will post copies of the Notice to All Employees, attached hereto and made a pert hereof, in conspicuous planet at the Bureau of Prisons -- Federal Consciouslicited Complex Butter, North Carolice where employees represented by AFGE, Local 408 work, including all bullarin boards and other planes where notices to employees are customartly posted, for a period of at least thirty (30) days from the date of posting. The Notice, when posted will be signed by Creig Apter, Complex Warden. ELECTRIC POSTING OF NOTICE: The Agency will excel a copy of the Notice to All Employees to employees represented by AFGE, Local 405 within Entry days of execution of the Agreemant. COMPLIANCE WITH NOTICE: The Agency will comply with all the terms and provisions of the Notice. RISFURAL TO ISSUE COMPLAINT: In The sweet the Charging Party fails or refuses to become a party to the Agreement, and if the Regional Director conclusion that # will effect the policies of the Statute, whe shell decline to issue a Complete herein and this Agreement shell be between the Agency and the undertigned. Regional Director. A review of each action may be obtained pursuant to Saction 2433.110 and (d) of the Authority's Regulations. This Agreement is contregent upon the General Councel sustaining the Regional Diractor's ection in the event of an append. Apprend of this Agreement by the Regional Director shall constitute a validativel of any Complaint(a) and Notice of Hearing heretolate issued in the same PERFORMANCE: Performance by the Agency of the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall commence immediately after the Agreement is approved by the Regional Director or in the event the Charging Party does not only into the Agreement, performance shall central . immediately upon receipt by the Agency of advice that no appeal has been find or that the General Counsel has applained the Regional Director. NOTIFICATION OF ODMPLIANCE: The Agency will notify the Regional Director in writing what steps the Agency has taken to comply received. Such notification shall be made within Mean (15)days, and again after study (50) days, from the step of the approval of this Agencement, or in the event the Charging Party does not only into this Agreement, effer the receipt of notice that no append has been flied or that the General Counsel has sustained the Regional Director. COMPLIANCE WITH SETTLEMENT ACHEEMENT: Configure upon compliance with the imme-and provisions hereof, no further action shell be taken to the above case. Bigsedferentiand February 28, 2012 by Craig Actar, Complex Wardan; Anthony Little, President Local 406; and Barbara Kraft, Regional Director Westington Regional Office, FLRA...<u>Memoranthan of</u> Undertitenting (MCU) Barbaran Council of Prison Locals, Local 408 and Federal Correctional Complex, Barbar HC...Subject: Oranthan High Proactures, Utilization of Correctional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexitional Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexition Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexition Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexition Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexition Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexition Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexition Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Complexition Services Rester Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent varian of the Program...FCI-2/FMC will utilize the Intent vari Progritim with overtime capabilities...Signed and streaded February 25, 2012. For the Agency...Craig Apice, Complex Warder; Angele P. Dunbar, Warden PGI-2; Isacy Johne, Warden FCI-1 & LSC; Anthony Little, Provident, Local 408.

** Union Exhibit, U-11.

" Union Exhibit, U-12.

²⁰ Agency Exhibit, AE-1...ULP Charge Number WA-GA-13-0536 filed by AFGE Loosi 406, Anthony Litle, President against FCC Buiner, Craig Aplan. Complex Wardan...Violation of 5 USC 7118(c)(1, 5, 7, 6, 5) references previous ULP and FLRA approved settlement agreement and execution of MOU...On July 3, 2013. Agency republished and violated settlement agreement by signing new MOU constraint Gatelies Mitrig Practices and Utilization of Correctional Services Roster Program with APGE Loosis 3690 and 405...,auptractes settlement agreement agreement and MOU with 400.

- ** Arbitrator/Joint, Exhibit, A/J-7.
- 🍄 Unicy Exhibit, U-16.
- ** Arbitrator/Joint, Exhibit, A/J-4.
- Adultrator/Joint, Exhibit, A/J-5.
- ¹³ Arbitrator/Joint Eschibit, A/J-8.

⁵⁴ Agency/Employer Exhibit, A/E-1...FLRA letter to Anthony Little, Provident, AFGE Local 408, from Berbers Kinth, Regional Oteonor, Weekington Regional Office, FLRA, subject USDOJ, FBOP, PCC Butter and AFGE Local 406 ULP...The charge as clarified by the lowertigation allogen that the Agency repudiated the settlement agreement in case number WA-CA-12-0513, thereby violating section 7116(a)(1) and (8)...The Settlement Agreement required the Agency to "execute and honor" the Memorandum on Overtime Hiring Procedures and Utilization of Connectional Services Roster Program that the Agency tod Local 408 regulated Merch 2012...whether the Agency reputated the Settlement Agreement depends on whether it reputated the underlying Merch 12 MCU...I fied that the Agency's conduct here did not amount to reputation, betwee the alleged breach on the Narch 2012 MCU was not clear and patient...The March 2012 MCU provides, among other things, that "any new suggestations concerning the procedures for overtime will review the procedures listed have and be incorporated for regulation in the new negotiations...This lenguage is capable of more than one interpretation...Clustions of interpretations are for an application, regulation in the new negotiations...This lenguage is capable of more than one interpretation...Clustions of interpretations are for an application, not the FURA...A reservable interpretation, though not necessarily the only restonable interpretation, is that the March 2012 MCU, contemplication further negotiations approximation of the complite-wide agreement, and is relationable to the March 2012 MCU, any market agreement...Interpretation of the complite-wide agreement, and the relationship to the March 2012 MCU, MOU, and I am demissing the charge for this reason,"

** Union Exhibit, U-13...Copies of FCC Buther LMR Mosting minutes for LMR meetings during the period August 28, 2013 through July 8, 2015.

⁴⁴ Union Exhibit, U-7...See Endnote 77 above...Also, Agency referenced decision by Arbitrator Barbara, Wood leaved July 12, 2012, in its peakhearing brief, sublick 23.

⁴⁷ Eliguit & Eliguit, 7th Edition 9-19, paraphrasing the Court's Stockworkers vs. Enlarprise Wheel.

¹⁴ M. At 9-34.

At Force, Chinhome City, ALC, Tinker AFB and AFGE Local 195, AREX1504450 (Cuinn, 1993) per Haday, Guide to Federal Sociar Labor Arbitration 5-146.

100 kd. At 9-20, persphering Gerrett, Contract interpretations.

W Union Exhibit, U-12.

¹⁰² See U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. and American Federation of Government Employees, Loset 12, 56 FLRA 21 (2003) where the Authority text that a ULP oburge alleging a statutory violation does not ber, under §7115(d), a subsequent getware alleging a catterat, violation, and that the Authority has drawn a clear distance violation between legal theories supporting allegistics of statutory violations and allegistics of contrast violations, and that the Authority has drawn a clear distance induction between legal theories supporting allegistics of statutory violations and allegistics of contrast violations, and the Authority has drawn a clear distance induction between legal theories supporting allegistics of statutory violations and allegistics of contrast violations, and the Authority has drawn a clear distance induction between legal theories supporting allegistics of statutory violations and allegistics of contrast violations, and the Authority has drawn a clear distance in the support of provide and U.S. Department of the Authority the theories are not substantially shaller for the purportant Support Pacifity. VA 67 FLRA 5 (2012); IAMASNI and hiery, Nevel Admition Depat, Nortolt, VA 64 PLRA 109 (1992); U.S. Nacias: Regulatory Consultation and NYEU 67 FLRA 51 (2014); LUS, Department of Justice, Pederal Survey, New York, New York, New York, and AFGE, Council of Prival, Livelle 53, Local S148 67 FLRA 117 (2014); and U.S. Department of Justice, Pederal Survey, of Pricons and AFGE, Local 3045 66 FLRA 536 (2012); Justice, Pederal Survey, while both the two ULPs and the subject groweries alloged violation of Federal status, the Arbitratic finds the legal theory and dulies under 5 USC 7116 are not the same as these under 5 USC 5005.

¹⁰ Citing Sabree v. Unlinet Brotherhood of Corputtiers and Joiners, Local No. 33, 921 (F.24) 396, 402, 405 (1990).

¹⁰⁴ Cites and provides copies as stischments in post-heating brief: at E-6, AFGE Local/242 and USP Atwater, FMC8 06-60931 (2008) (Arbitrator Fincher providing strict application of the subject agreement); al E-7, FCC Coleman and AFGE Local 608, FMC8 06-66934 (2002) (Arbitrator Oventinest upholding strict application of the subject agreement); al E-7, FCC Coleman and AFGE Local 608, FMC8 06-66934 (2002) (Arbitrator Oventinest upholding strict application of the subject agreement); al E-7, FCC Coleman and AFGE Local 608, FMC8 06-66934 (2002) (Arbitrator Oventinest upholding strict application of the subject agreement); al E-7, FCC Coleman and AFGE Local 608, FMC8 06-67019 (2009) (Arbitrator biologic upholding strings); at E-9, FCI La Tara and AFGE Local 0083, FMCS 06-66151 (2010) (Arbitrator Haghes upholding unitative biologic at E-10, FCI Estit and Anthony Center, FMCS 10-53185 (2011) (Aubitrator Oberdenk upholds timely ting based on continuing violation, greatenes denied for unitately and specific notification of intend is technologic at E-11, FCC Vatoo City and AFGE Locat/013, [FNC8 11-8210881, (2011) (Arbitrator Bendissen discussing previous BCP arbitration deviations Ending a continuing violation, but in audject case upholding unitately Bing); at E-12, FCI Estim and AFGE Locat/007, FMC3, 10-8358-8 (2012) (Arbitrator Ohendo, Jr.); USP Abreter and AFGE Locat/262, [FMC8 14-52768-A(2014) (Arbitrator Bridgewater upholding faiture to Invoke arbitration correctly); at E-13, FCC Coleman and AFGE Locat 200, FMG3 14-52768-A(2014) (Arbitrator Bridgewater upholding faiture to Invoke arbitration correctly); at E-13, FCC Coleman and AFGE Locat 200, FMG3 14-52768-A(2014) (Arbitrator Bendissen, discussion on Back Pey Act, continuing violation and upholde that EPA not applicable; therefore, sufficiently filing); and at E-14, FCI East and AFGE Locat 3076, FMC3 (3-02265 (2015) (Arbitrator Bendissen); AFGE Locat 3079 and FCI Stratilare, FMC5 14-80342-8 (2018) (Arbitrator Allen up holding Bing at virong leve).

¹⁰⁸ Union Exhibit, U-16, emails from Joyce Stone, subject glitch in the system.

¹⁰² Elkouri & Elkouri, 7⁴ Edition, at 9-13, 9-15, and 9-21.

¹⁰⁷ M. At 8-102-103,

¹⁰⁸ Arbitratorial Sublidit, A/J-3 AFGE Local 408's FLRA approved MOU signed reflective February 25, 2013...

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOL)

COUNCIL OF PRISONS LOCALS, LOCAL 405 (UNION) PEDERAL CORRECTIONAL CONFLEX, BUTNER, NC (AGENCY)

SUBJECT: Oversing Hiring Procedures

Utilization of Correctorial Services Roster Program

FC5-28FMC will utilize the latest version of the Correctored Services Roeter Program, with overtime categorithes.

FNC Sargaining Unit staff will be allowed to sign up for overtime for the entire quarter when the finel routor is posted times (8) woulds (rist to the bagkining of each quarter. The computantized sign-up list will pat differentiate between Correctional Services staff and Mon-Correctional Services staff and will all be referred to as Correctional Workers for the purpose of this MOU.

The following Sign-up Categories are explicitle; "instalation", "Outside Hospital", "Net Trips/Airlika", or AF to be considered for any exercise evaluate.

ASSIGNS REGULAR OVERTIME:

Start will be granted leaving a divertime according to their other on the Connectional Services Review Progress. When overtime is satisfact or refused, starts mane will manual to the boltom of the divertime last. If no content is made to the feet wall remote r. 2 "No Content (NC)" will be noted and more divide the mate table to the feet wall remote r. 2 "No Content (NC)" will be noted and more divide the mate table to the feet wall remote r. 2 "No Content (NC)" will be noted and more divide the mate table to the feet wall remote r. 2 "No Content (NC)" will be noted and more divide the mate table to the original place on the list. If overtime testignated for whilever reason, designable deall's a more table to the table to the table to the list. If overtime testignated for whilever reason, designable deall's a more table to the list. manys will be reinstanted to their original place on the list prior to the concelled assignment.

When exercise is vacated by a staff member state statements (staff member carbaix or requests eick leave and does not work the sarighed pow), that staff member should be name as "Refused" on the Program Roster and the staff's name who's be rotated to the bottom of the list by the time of RefusedCarbailation (i.e. staff requested shit leave at 10:05 s.m., (Current Date) or Evening Welch. Blaff's name will be rotated to the bottom of the list of 10:05 s.m., (Current Date).

Upon being notifiest a staff member requesting sick leave of avelaned overtime, the Correctional Services Router Program Administration (UT) with make the algorithm point of the correctional Services Ready and research downline point at the service point peeble opperiumly.

ASSIGNING MANDATORY OVERTIME:

Correctional Genetices Router Program Administrators (LTs) will utilize the Computertand Mandatory List when assigning sent Mandatory Contines. Blad who have not been relieved within 15 minutes of the and of their shift will be credied for a Mandatory Continue on the Computertant Mandatory List with the subsplice of Variable Shift Poste S.s. Madeul Escort and Valling Room), which may be given a :Continuance of Shift' if their current daties will educe just their current Daily unsignment Shift without utilizing the Computertand Mandatory List for unsignment. However, allocated shift will be credied for a Mandatory Creations on the **Computational Manufatory List**

NCTE: "Mendetory" Overline and "Repular" Overline are not the easily. Bielf that are placed on "Mandatory" Overline will be rotated to the ballops of the Computersant Mendetory List, however, the staff's place on the Computerional Services Review Program List is unalifieded (shaff will remain in the easile and and and any tight by the staff of the staff

NOTE: Shell will ordinactly dot be senigrout "Mandatory" overlight the day prior to Scheduled Leave or Day ON, when there is an institution emergency requiring all sanif to remain an post of all the institution, or all other options have been informatic.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL TRUPS AND "LIST EXEMPT" PROCEDURES:

In the event of Emergency Medical Trips going out into in the whit and there is not adequate time to assign overtime using the above antability of providence. Under may utilize the "ALL CALL" to make an above the first extension edge (0) hour whit utilizing "List Exampt" providence. We assigned under "List Exampt" will relate in the boltom of the constraints that that this whit utilizing "List Exampt" providence. We can get (1) hour whit utilizing "List Exampt" providence. We can get (2) hour whit whit utilizing "List Exampt" will relate in the boltom of the overtime last. After the first eight (3) hour shift, the Acate Program will be utilized in (8) following white the Bed utilizing the Rower Program).

Any Overline that will encode states: (18) hours of head-firm with white regular state will be a "lithit Conflict". Staff with a "Bhilt Conflict" states will regular shite be trighted place on the Sat.

Exheusted Overfime Liets:

There will be a paper sign up flat located in the Lieutenant's Office used by non-bergaining wort. If the Computerized bargaining overline rooter is inframeted Management will then utilize the non-bergaining paper sign-up list to fit overline.

Errors in Hirtney

The Union and Management agree that from time to time hornest ministrices will be made its bring overline. Before filing a format grinvence, the Union and Management spreads by to informally reactive these instantons in the following manner:

"Skipped" employees we be provided the opportunity is work overtime, regardless of subgory, within a 21-days prior initiation in the employee of the skip. The effected employee(e) will plok the statt and day they work the owntime with 40 least a 24-baux notice to the Operational Updateant of this deployee, with the Operations Libutanent providing notice to the employee of the time of the past malgined on this deployee. This overtime will be received applied the "without a 24-baux notice to the Operational Updateant of this deployee, with employee or any offer employee in the overtime notice to the deployee" of the "without will be recorded by the Libutanent as "big Deployment Republics." If the "adopted" employee refume the past seeigned on the deployee estimation, the "without" employee's capability in canadated mode.

Wilsoin on Other MCLIs.

This MOU supervises all previous MOUs dealing with Overtisse signed by the Agency and Local 4G8. Any new regatisions concerning the processing the procesing the processing

Should any immenicancement trine as a nexult of this MOU, the Agency and Level 408 agree to discuss them within nevers (7) working days of notification of the leave OF BORDERS

For the Agency

Staned, 22/26/2013 Crain Astanti Sate N. Russille Craig Apter Complex Warden

(Signed D3/20/2013)(Angels P. Duris Warden PCI-2

Referred (12/28/2012) Tracy Johns Warden FO-1 & LSC

For the Union

//Simuel 02/20/2013// Manuel Collegel, President: Anthony Lillie Loost 408

Bener Matter, 1 Vice President

Entrie Olme, 2" Vice Provident

*** Arbitratori, Joint Exhibit, A/J-2 and 9

The Preamble of the parties' MA provides, in periment part:

". The Suress of Prisons wij develop and maintain constructive and cooperative relationships with its applyone, through their exclusive representative, where a sufficients. The Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics Prisons Factors of Prisons</u>. Therefore, the Factors Bureau of Prisons... Therefore, the Employee' or 'the Agency,' and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>. The Agency,' and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u> is a <u>statistical statistics</u>, and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>. The Agency,' and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>, the <u>Prisons</u>... The Agency,' and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>, and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>, 's <u>"to Endowneys</u>, and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>, and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>, 's <u>"to Endowneys</u>, hereinsteir referred to us "<u>the Union</u>" or "<u>to Endowneys</u>, and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u>, 's <u>"to Endowneys</u>, hereinsteir endowneys are <u>"the Union</u>" or "<u>to Endowneys</u>, hereinsteir endowneys are <u>the Union</u>" or <u>"to Endowneys</u>, and the Council of Prison Locals <u>statistics</u> or <u>the Adet(statistics</u>) or <u>"to Endowneys</u>, hereinsteir endowneys are <u>"to Union</u>" or <u>"to Endowneys</u>, hereinsteir endowneys are <u>the Union</u>" or <u>"to Endowneys</u>, hereinsteir endowneys are the too the statist and council to present the between the Agency and the Union." (Emphasis added...Note: the Proverties of the Materia agentium the statist the series working).

Article 1 - Secondrillers provides in particular part

* Section 6. <u>The Union</u> is recognized on the sole and anchoice representative for all bargelining unit engloyees on delined in 5 United States Code (USC). Chapter 71... Section 10. The Employee recognizes the <u>Union as the states in the unit</u>, of all the employees, in the unit, us the recognized Union for bargelining pulposes... The <u>Union</u> has full and the employees... The <u>Union</u> has full and the states in the unit, us the recognized Union for bargelining pulposes... The <u>Union</u> has full and the states in the unit, with the recognized Union for bargelining pulposes... The <u>Union</u> has full and the states in the unit, we the recognized Union for bargelining pulposes... The <u>Union</u> has full and the states in the section of all the employees... The <u>Union</u> has full and the recognized by Sectore in an excitation of a states and configure of the states in the section of the states in the section of the section of the states in the section of a states in the section of the section of the states in the section of the states in the section of the

Antola 2 - Joint Labor Management Relations Mantings:

"Section 1. The purfixe at the netional level endorse the compage of regular labor management meetings at the label level, it is recommended that with meetings coors at least monthly, that there be an established method of writen filmese, and that there be suspense delay for responses of constitute ect. <u>The solid protectures for local lebor management that the billion of antibulation of antibulations and that there be [Emphasis added...Note: no change in this wonling between the two spectrum(ta)]</u>

Article 5 - Governing Regulations:

"Section a. 1. <u>Local manimental advantances will take encodence</u> over any Agency lammos derived or generaled at the local level...Gention d. 5. When jointly-proposed policy interview are made, <u>the local Unity, President will be notified</u> as provided above, <u>legd the manner in which local recollations are continued will parallel this gripp..." [Emphasis added...Note: no change in this working between the two agreements]</u>

Artiste 4 - Religiorship of This Agreement to Burney Policies, Regulations, and Practices:

"Section a. In presenting regulations relating to personnal policies and practices and to consider a "employment, the Employment of the Union shall have due report for the oblighted imposed by 5 USC 7105, 7114, and 7117. The Employment for the oblighted imposed by 5 USC 7105, 7114, and 7117. The Employment for the oblighted imposed by 5 USC 7105, 7114, and 7117. The Employment for an example in responsibility for planning the state report for the oblighted imposed by 5 USC 7105, 7114, and 7117. The Employment for the completes in responsibility for planning the Union of chances, synthme conditions at the face integration in Section 1. So matters which are not covered in structure for the section in the section of the

Article 7 - Rights of the Union:

Article 9 - Negatalions at the Loost Level:

"The Environmental the links some told fits Assessment will constitute for institute Collective Becamping Assessment between the autilian and evolutions control in the becamping and as defined in Article 1. Recording the analysis of all Bartes of Princess carried indicates and evolutions in attention, which the active in Accessment became in Article 1. Recording the second ment of Princess carried indicates in an evolution in attention, which the active in a definition of the second ment by an all the active in the becamping and an analysis of the second ment of the second m

¹¹⁰ As explained in the beginning of the decision and documented earlier in the Endoples, the record contains a signed table copy of the Maxim Agreement between the Federal Burney of Prisons and Gounol of Prison Locals, American Federation of Government Employees for the period March 9, 1990 — March 8, 2001, encoded February 8, 1998 (Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit, AAI-3), as well as, a signed/finite copy of the Maxim Agreement between the Federal Burney of Prisons and Council of Prison Locals, American Federation of Government Employees for the period July 21, 2014 – July 20, 2017, escated May 29, 2014 (Arbitrator/Joint Exhibit, AAI-8), ...The prisony agreement applicable during the meighting of Ste gliavance period is the first ched agreement which the parties stipulated was the appropriate contract for the Arbitrator to the art it had been properly estimated from the and of its base period of to contract provisions of the new agreement is 2014. As for the Arbitrators from analysis, and Indings, where attention is placed on contract provisions the discussion, analysis, and Backing will constrain and counsil of constract both agreement is a significant difference. In the first agreements, however, the Arbitrator is placed on contract provisions the discussion, analysis, and Backings will contract the constract both agreements, analysis, and Backings will contract the temperated both agreements, analysis, and Backings will contract the temperated both agreements, analysis, and Backings will contract the temperate both agreements, analysis, and Backings will contract the constract both agreements, analysis, and Backings will contract the temperature both agreements, analysis, and Backings will contract the temperature both agreements, analysis, and Backings will contract the temperature both agreements, and where there is a significant difference. In the provisions of the two agreements, notations and observations might be made. ¹¹¹ This cheracterization/1000g/Nion designation is not original but the findings of the FLRA Office of Administrative Judges as expressed in several different decisions; see U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Prisone, U.S. Medical Cartier for Federal Prisoners, Springfield, Nisseuri and American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 1612, Case Number DE-CA-807e1, August 19, 1999; and U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Sureeu of Prisone, Federal Correctional Institution, Sharidan, Oregon and AFGE, Local 3976, Case No. 8F-CA-11-0907, September 30, 2914.

¹¹² See Customs Service, 18 FLRA 1, 85 FLRR 1-1146; Estimationary Army Depot, 34 FLRA 606, 90 FLRR 1-1126; NTEU, Chepter 103 and U.S. Department of Homeland Scourky, U.S. Customs and Border Protection, Port of Long Beech, Long Beech, California 87 FLRA 34 (2013; U.S. Department of Defense, Defense, Defense Logistics Agency and AFGE, Local 918 65 FLRA 12 (2011); U.S. Department of Velecans Affeks, Northern Artzons VA Hauth Care System, Proceed, Artzons and AFGE, Local 2401 66 FLRA 175 (2012; and AFGE, AFL-CIO, Ocuroll of Princes Logist, Local 501 and U.S. Doy, FBOP, Federal Detantion Center, Miami, FL FIACS Case No. 11-82732-3 decided September 7, 2012 by Adelinator Martin A, Sol.

¹¹³ See AFGE, Council of Prison Locals 33, Local 3690 and U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Sureau of Prisons, Federal Correctional institution, Marris, Fiorida 89 FLRA 15 (2015); U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons, Federal Correctional institution, Sharidan, Cregori and AFGE, Local 3979, Case No. 8F-CA-11-0607, September 30, 2014; and U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons, Federal Bureau of Prisons, Federal Bureau of Prisons, Federal Bureau of Prisons, Federal Society, Constant Correctional Institution, Oxford, Watconsist and AFGE, Local 2495, Case No. CH-CA-12-0403, December 19, 2014.

¹¹⁴ See MA, Article 4, Section b which provides...'Om nations which are not covered in supplemental agreements at the local level, all written benefits, or practices and understandings between the parties implementing this agreement, which are negotiable, shell not be changed unless agreed to in writing by the parties; also, APGE, APL-CKO, Local 1961 and Department of Justice. Bureau of Princes, Pederal Correctional Institution, Danbury, Connecteut 2 PLRA SE

14 See AFGE, Local 1592, 54 FLRA 661, 651-62 (2010).

118 5 UBC 5695

¹¹⁷ Citing AFGE Local 5680 and Bureau of Prisons 69 FLRA 21 (2015) Exhibit 23 of the Unions post-bearing brief.

19 Oling Defense Finance and Accounting Service, 104 LRP 46548, 60 FLRA 251 (2004). Exhibit 24 of the Union's post-bearing brief.

¹¹¹ The concept of preveiling party status was explained in Department of the Nevy, Norfolk Nevel Shipyard, 90 FLRR 1-1148, 34 FLRA 725 (1990), (Exhibit 25, Union's post-hearing brief) where the FLRA, borrowing language from the U.S. Court of Appendix, Federal Christianid that determining who preveile is executivity "a totaling up of who won and who lost."

120 Citing General Services Administration, 105 LRP 31780, 61 FLRA #8 (2005). Exhibit 25, Union's post-hearing brief.

⁽²⁾ Citing Deriver VA Medical Center, 94 FERR 1-1145, 49 FERA 1403 (1994). Exhibit 27, Union's post-hearing brank.

122 Testimony of Mr. Eric Young, President of the Council of Prison Locale, Vol. IV, pgs 28-70.

¹²³ See MA, Article 5, Bection a 1 which provides in part "....It is understood that local supplemental agreements will explice upon the name day as the Master Agreement, except as noted in a(2)....R the Master Agreement's life is extended beyond the scheduled explicition date for any reason, local supplemental agreements will also be extended; and (in a(2))...providing that nothing in the local supplement agreement is in conflict with the provisions of the Master Agreement, or changes in any policies, regulations, or lows, the parties at the local lovel any middle explicit of execute new signature and dates, if mitter party desires to ranegotiste the local supplements," Syn, elso, U.S. Berder Petrol Livennore Sector, Duble, California and APGE, National Border Petrol Cource), Local 2730, AFL-CiO 96 FLRA 56 (2002).

¹³⁴ Elliouri & Elliouri, 7⁸ Edillon, et 7-22 FN 103.

¹³⁶ ki ul 7-45-47 FN210.

^{ca} The Arbitrator hely understands this decision and every may have impact on management's relations with the other APGE Locals representing BUEs in the other institutions at Butter; seventheless, management's must take all managines measure to make whele its contractual relationship and obligations with APGE Local 406 and the BUEs in the institutions/facilities it represents, PCI-2 and PMC.

¹²⁷ Example of the kind of report the parties are to provide the Arbitrator...

	Name of Que Deprived of Charleys	Constant of Gulf Department of Overlage	Table Mundow of Hairing Local	Discussion of Street		Hanne of Breakson Stiller with Annual State State The County State	Contraction of Bandward
	4			Filmiter Month of August sta-	in Spin		
			2				
· · · ·	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1				Name 1999 (s	*** 30 - 2 - 3	
1				AL SHELD		Just Bas	
				W240		798 T. D. B	